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          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Welcome to this

          3  delayed meeting of the General Welfare Committee. I

          4  apologize to all our members of the audience for the

          5  delay this morning.

          6                 I want to welcome my colleagues,

          7  Larry Seabrook, and Christine Quinn and I think

          8  other members of the committee will be coming in and

          9  out as the hearing progresses. Before we introduce

         10  the first panel, I want to welcome our colleagues

         11  from the Administration. Just very briefly, the

         12  frame -- the hearing -- this will be just a moment

         13  or two. We are talking today about Intro 500,

         14  legislation introduced by the Administration which

         15  would implement several changes that were proposed

         16  in the Mayor's plan to restructure Social Services

         17  as part of the executive budget.

         18                 The key elements are the elimination

         19  of Department Employment and transfer of functions

         20  of Department Employment to Department Business

         21  Services and Department of Youth and Community

         22  Development and transfer responsibilities from ACS

         23  to HRA in the area of child support. There may be

         24  other areas as well.

         25                 We want to obviously get a sense from
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          2  the Administration representatives of any other

          3  items that they may feel uncovered by this

          4  legislation. This is an opportunity to hear more

          5  detail.

          6                 Obviously, this is a very, very

          7  important piece of legislation. There are some areas

          8  in it that have caused great concern. This is an

          9  opportunity for us to get in some real detail. We

         10  appreciate that we had a good conversation with Dr.

         11  Fuchs at a previous hearing. I think now we have a

         12  chance to ask some additional questions that have

         13  come up since then.

         14                 We're hoping to have the Labor

         15  Commissioner of New York State Commissioner Angello

         16  here, but unfortunately, she was unable to attend.

         17  She's given us a letter which we will put into the

         18  record. But the most important piece of the letter

         19  from our point of view on the committee, it states

         20  that the restructuring proposal "sends a strong

         21  signal that New York City's employment training

         22  programs must be aligned with business need. It must

         23  be aligned to where job growth and opportunity are

         24  expected." I'm happy to hear that the State Labor of

         25  Departments feels that. It certainly is the area of
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          2  concern that this committee has worked on.

          3  Particularly in the area of WIA funding over the

          4  last year and half. So, we do hope that whatever the

          5  outcome, that that spirit talked about in

          6  Commissioner's Angello's letter will be adhered to.

          7                 We also have a number of

          8  representatives in the business community at Labor

          9  Advocacy Groups and non-profit providers here who

         10  will be speaking after this panel.

         11                 And now I would like to welcome Dr.

         12  Fuchs and if the other members of the panel --

         13  originally we were anticipating some of the

         14  Commissioners.

         15                 We understand that the Administration

         16  has a different line up. And that's fine. We just

         17  want to make sure everyone is formally introduced.

         18  So, Dr. Fuchs, perhaps if the members of the panel

         19  could introduce themselves and then if you could

         20  begin your testimony. Thank you. We welcome --

         21                MR. FARBER: David Farber, General

         22  Council Department of Employment.

         23                 MR. SCHWARTZ: Andrew Schwartz, First

         24  Deputy Commissioner, General Council Department of

         25  mall Business Services.
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          2                 MS. MILLER: Virginia Miller, Deputy

          3  Commissioner fo Administration, DYCD.

          4                 MS. SMITH: Pat Smith, First Deputy

          5  Commissioner HRA. Hello.

          6                 MR. NEWMAN: Harvey Newman, Deputy

          7  Commissioner ACS.

          8                CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: And Dr. Fuchs,

          9  before you begin, I'd like to welcome Council Member

         10  Jose Serrano.

         11                 MS. FUCHS: Good morning, Chair

         12  DeBlasio and members of the eneral Welfare

         13  Committee. I am Dr. Esther Fuchs, Special Advisor to

         14  the Mayor for Governance and Strategic Planning. I'm

         15  here to discuss Introductory Number 500, a bill

         16  proposed by Mayor Bloomberg to reorganize the

         17  administration of human services in New York City.

         18  Last month, I testified before this committee on the

         19  City's restructuring and consolidation plan. This

         20  legislation and my testimony today speaks more

         21  specifically to the agency mergers and changes in

         22  service delivery.

         23                 First, as everybody here is familiar

         24  with the problem and as you all know, we continue to

         25  endure the national recession. The City's programs
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          2  and services are experiencing significant reductions

          3  in funding. We anticipate even further cutbacks from

          4  the State and Federal government. These budgetary

          5  constraints make it increasingly difficult for our

          6  agencies to serve the needs of our residents. Social

          7  service programs, which serve the neediest New

          8  Yorkers, find their funding limited just as the

          9  demand for their services is expected to increase.

         10                 As I testified before, we need to be

         11  resourceful and creative in order to maintain the

         12  current level of service delivery during these tough

         13  fiscal times. The opportunity to consolidate and

         14  merge similar programs and restructure operations

         15  offers the best option for maintaining many programs

         16  and building on previous accomplishments that have

         17  enhanced services.

         18                 Our social service agencies often

         19  provide the same or similar services and interact

         20  with many of the same clients. By consolidating

         21  functions performed by various agencies, we'll be

         22  able to eliminate duplication, create efficiencies

         23  and conserve funds. At the same time, we will also

         24  be able to improve client access to services. The

         25  proposals in Intro. 500 offer a common sense
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          2  approach to human services which has been the

          3  hallmark of this City Council. We believe that the

          4  proposals we are suggesting and offering here today

          5  are really in complete concert with the types of

          6  proposals the City Council has offered in the part

          7  and that they talked to us about individually and

          8  collectively on previous occasions.

          9                 Section 1- Transfer of Functions from

         10  ACS to HRA. Specifically, we're proposing the

         11  transfer of the Office of Child Support Enforcement

         12  to HRA. Currently, the Office of Child Support

         13  Enforcement (OCSE), a division of ACS, is the agency

         14  in charge with locating absent parents, establishing

         15  paternity and child support orders and collecting

         16  child support.

         17                 HRA integrates these efforts into the

         18  process of determining eligibility for public

         19  assistance. When parents apply for public assistant

         20  benefits, they assign to the State and HRA their

         21  rights to obtain support from a responsible third

         22  party.

         23                 OCSE and HRA have been working

         24  together to ensure that all non-custodial parents

         25  are paying child support. For example, both agencies
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          2  have jointly implemented an Increased Collections

          3  Initiative to increase child support payments by

          4  non- custodial parents, by aggressively implementing

          5  both voluntary and court ordered work assignments

          6  and job training.

          7                 The transfer of OCSE back to HRA will

          8  allow HRA to integrate these and other agency

          9  initiatives to promote responsibility and self-

         10  sufficiently. As HRA identifies and pursues non-

         11  custodial parents for child support collections

         12  purposes, HRA can engage them in employment

         13  activities when needed, so that the multiple

         14  objectives can -- so that multiple objectives can be

         15  achieved. HRA and ACS are working expeditiously to

         16  affect this transfer.

         17                 Secondly, is transferring of

         18  childcare eligibility to HRA. By transferring

         19  childcare eligibility from ACS to HRA, we will be

         20  able to streamline eligibility for childcare

         21  services. When clients leave public assistance, the

         22  nature of their childcare benefits changes. They

         23  first receive transitional childcare and then

         24  receive subsidized childcare after 12 months in the

         25  work force.
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          2                 We need to ensure a seamless

          3  transition in benefits during this important period

          4  when mothers are being challenged to balance the

          5  multiple demands of childcare and work.

          6                 As I testified before the Select

          7  Committee on Technology and Government, our

          8  Administration has been working with 13 agencies to

          9  streamline the screening and eligibility process by

         10  providing clients the opportunity to apply for

         11  several benefits or work supports in one location

         12  and minimizing the need to travel to various

         13  locations around the City. HRA has been the cutting

         14  edge agency in developing the technology that can

         15  accomplish these goals. HRA has expertise in

         16  eligibility determination and has the infrastructure

         17  through its imaging capabilities to retain

         18  documentation in readily retrievable manner, thereby

         19  improving the quality and consistency of eligibility

         20  determinations.

         21                 By transferring childcare eligibility

         22  to ACS the integration can occur more quickly and

         23  efficiently. During the initial stages of transfer,

         24  clients will continue to go to ACS Resource Centers

         25  for eligibility determination so that there will be
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          2  no interpretation in services. HRA is working

          3  closely with ACS to implement an eligibility process

          4  whereby social service clients will come to one

          5  location to submit documentation and be eligible for

          6  childcare. The actual service will continue to be

          7  provided by ACS. We expect to implement a client

          8  friendly and efficient service delivery model.

          9                 In addition to improving services to

         10  clients, the consolidation of child care eligibility

         11  functions will also eliminate the need for multiple

         12  agencies to perform similar functions and incur all

         13  the associated support costs in the form of space,

         14  legal, fiscal, and personnel. Technology is

         15  providing us with the tools to change the way we

         16  operate and provide services. We must take advantage

         17  of this technology and use it to improve service

         18  delivery and reduce costs.

         19                 HRA will work with child care

         20  providers and ACS to ensure the continuity of child

         21  care services. The timeline for this transfer is

         22  subject to the time needed to ensure our clients

         23  continuity of child care services.

         24                 Section 3 is a transfer of functions

         25  from DOE to DSBS. The Workforce Investment Act of
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          2  1998 as we call, WIA, calls for a comprehensive

          3  customer- focused workforce development system. The

          4  system is intended to help all members of the

          5  workforce to access the counseling and training they

          6  need to manage their careers.

          7                 At the same time, the WIA legislation

          8  is expressly concerned with linking businesses to

          9  the workers they need. Strengthening the link

         10  between workforce development and economic

         11  development is the most significant benefit of our

         12  program transfer and has already been done in states

         13  and localities around the country.

         14                 The Administration's decision to

         15  transfer the WIA adult and dislocated worker

         16  programs to DSBS is based on the natural synergies

         17  that exist between the two agencies. The core

         18  mission of DSBS has been to serve the City's small

         19  businesses. Last September, DSBS was offering free

         20  introductory classes in business and computer

         21  software -- last September, DSBS, excuse me, began

         22  offering free introductory classes in business and

         23  computer software programs through the One Stop

         24  Center in Jamaica. DSBS is opening business services

         25  centers in partnership with community organizations
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          2  that serve the small businesses; thereby allowing

          3  them and their partners to offer a more complete

          4  menu of services to our customers. Job seekers and

          5  employees will now be served from the same agency in

          6  a more comprehensive and coordinated way.

          7                 This transfer will enable DSBS to

          8  respond to one of the most fundamental economic

          9  needs connecting the labor supply to employer

         10  demand. Cities such as Boston and Chicago have

         11  recognized the value in and made such a connection.

         12  And just last week, Minnesota announced the merger

         13  of its Department of Economic Security, which is

         14  worker focused, with the Department of Trade and

         15  Economic Development, which administers business

         16  assistance programs.

         17                 The consolidation of workforce

         18  development and business service programs have

         19  enormous benefits. We will be able to enhance the

         20  participation of businesses in workforce

         21  development. We expect to reduce redundancies and

         22  the costs incurred resulting from having two

         23  agencies providing many of the same services. We

         24  will now be able to leverage partnerships and

         25  relationships with local economic development
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          2  organizations such as Business Improvement

          3  Districts, Local Development Corporations, and

          4  Empire Zones to provide job training and placement.

          5                 We will also be able to coordinate a

          6  comprehensive City response with other agencies such

          7  as the Department of City Planning and the Economic

          8  Development Corporation to offer a full range of

          9  services to business in any future economic

         10  development activity. By providing workforce

         11  development in conjunction with a full array of

         12  other business assistance services in one agency,

         13  workers and the business community will both

         14  benefit.

         15                 Transferring functions from DOE to

         16  DYCD (Section 5 of the bill). As Commissioner

         17  Mullgrav testified before the Youth Committee early

         18  this week, DYCD is the logical agency to administer

         19  all youth development programs. The Mayor's FY04

         20  Executive Budget recognizes that the structure of

         21  social service delivery in New York City as it

         22  relates to youth services, is scattered and too

         23  diffuse, particularly in a time of fiscal austerity.

         24  To achieve economies in youth employment and after

         25  school programming that present budgetary
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          2  constraints, we will impose a more coordinated,

          3  efficient and intelligent use of fewer available

          4  resources.

          5                 DYCD is in a position to accomplish

          6  this coordination. It is the agency most experienced

          7  in after school programming and the one with the

          8  responsibility for the state funded Youth

          9  Development and Delinquency Prevention program. DYCD

         10  funds some of its Literacy Programs with federal WIA

         11  dollars currently. Which by and large accounts for

         12  the funding stream for the programs DYCD will be

         13  assuming responsibilities for under this proposed

         14  restructuring from DOE. DYCD has also used some of

         15  its federal Community Service Block Grant monies to

         16  fund a large number of Summer Youth Employment

         17  Program jobs, which is another program which had

         18  chiefly been administered by DOE.

         19                 By consolidating its WIA youth

         20  programs and its ACS after school programs with

         21  DYCD, the administration is developing a model

         22  through which all youth services are delivered by a

         23  single agency. This will ensure that maximum service

         24  efficiencies are provided to the youth of our City

         25  by preventing the duplication of services and by
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          2  preventing gaps in services.

          3                 In conclusion, our effort to

          4  restructure these four areas is consistent with the

          5  Administration's goal to be responsible to the

          6  fiscal reality that we are facing -- to be

          7  responsive, excuse me, to the fiscal reality we are

          8  facing while also addressing inefficiencies in

          9  government operations. We have been working

         10  diligently to outline the roles for each of the

         11  agencies in these transitions, as well as the

         12  agencies ongoing responsibilities under these new

         13  administrative structures. Through these planning

         14  efforts, we are able to ensure that there will be a

         15  seamless transition to this new service structure

         16  with no interruption of services to clients.

         17                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         18  testify here today and share with you the

         19  Administration's plan for implementing the social

         20  service restructuring proposal outlined in the FY04

         21  Executive Budget.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Thank you, Dr.

         23  Fuchs. I want to thank you -- first of all, I want

         24  to accept your kind compliment on behalf of the

         25  General Welfare Committee. We do believe in common
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          2  sense. And we have tried to make that a theme

          3  throughout the last year and half. I think -- I'll

          4  just say it at the top of the hearing here that I

          5  think a big concern that will run through all the

          6  questions and dialogues that are here today is very

          7  much refers to the last paragraph of your testimony.

          8  Which is the continuity, the ability to implement

          9  both at a time of fiscal distress and a time where

         10  other restructuring and reforms are going on.

         11  Particularly at the Department of Education. So, I

         12  want to single to you at the outset that I think

         13  everyone respects a lot of the goals that you are

         14  putting forth. But a lot of the questions today will

         15  be about how realistic is it to implement these

         16  goals and how can we ensure that we don't break that

         17  continuity. And obviously the number one -- the most

         18  practical and most common sense concern is what

         19  happens to the individual citizen -- individual

         20  customer in making sure that their services are not

         21  in any way decreased.

         22                 Let me ask you. There's a number of

         23  items here. I want to start with the Elimination

         24  Department of Employment because in many ways it is

         25  the single biggest item. And I know my colleagues
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          2  have some questions and then after their questions,

          3  I want to come back to some of the childcare issues.

          4  Let me also say at the outset, we appreciate that

          5  you have always been willing to have a very

          6  productive dialogue with this committee and I want

          7  to thank you for that.

          8                 I also want to say since we're

          9  talking about the functions of Department of

         10  Employment going to two other agencies, I haven't

         11  had a lot of opportunity personally to work with

         12  DYCD. But I have heard only good things about the

         13  Commissioner. But in the case of small business

         14  services, I've worked with Commissioner Walsh for

         15  many years. And I think he's a extremely effective

         16  public servant. So, I want to acknowledge that at

         17  the outset. Now, just quickly. In developing the

         18  plans, let me ask you just a broader review

         19  question. We talked a lot in our hearings about the

         20  concerns of the federal and state government in

         21  terms of how we do workforce development. Whether we

         22  use or don't use the Workforce Investment Board

         23  effectively. Just very basic answer. What kind of

         24  consultation process has there been with the

         25  federal, state governments and with the Workforce
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          2  Investment Board in determining these plans?

          3                 MS. FUCHS: Well, there has been

          4  actually quite a significant amount of consultation

          5  with both the state and federal government. I know

          6  that Commission Wu (phonetic) has discussed these

          7  plans with the state, with the federal department --

          8  with the Federal Labor Commissioner. And has

          9  discussed them at the state level with several

         10  members of the Department of Labor. I, myself, have

         11  discussed this with several members of the state,

         12  government as well. And there has been tremendous

         13  support for the idea of merging Workforce

         14  Development with Economic Development. I think that

         15  as you travel around the country as some have the

         16  opportunity to do, but if you also just keep up with

         17  what's going on in the state and City government

         18  which are sort of at the cutting edge of providing

         19  new models for workforce development. It's been

         20  acknowledged now from experience that the best

         21  approach to workforce development is really an

         22  approach which consolidates and merges the needs of

         23  the business community with the needs of the

         24  workforce. So, that the worker training programs,

         25  for example, which have the greatest success as we
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          2  know from study after study and state after state. I

          3  think that Governor Richards in Texas actually was

          4  one of the first to engage in this. To do these

          5  direct linkages between worker training and the need

          6  in a particular business, the general needs is a

          7  business community.

          8                 So, as we've learned over time, it's

          9  not enough to just train people for jobs when they

         10  may not exist. And workers are more motivated in

         11  this training program or re- training as some of

         12  them engage in when they know that there's a job at

         13  the end of the process. In our consultations, it

         14  became very clear that it would be easier, frankly,

         15  to create these linkages between the business

         16  community and the dollars that are available in our

         17  workforce investment system. If we had better access

         18  to the Economic Developmental Agencies in the City,

         19  we felt the best way to do this was through the

         20  Department of Small Businesses.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Let me ask

         22  about Workforce Investment Board. What was the

         23  process of that?

         24                 DR. FUCHS: And I'll get to that.

         25  We're having a meeting of the Workforce Investment
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          2  Board next week. The executive committee of the

          3  Workforce Investment Board was already consulted on

          4  these plans and have been given the first drafts and

          5  first versions of these plans. They are on board and

          6  have approved this. And this will be more

          7  intensively discussed with the broader board at the

          8  meeting next week. But, in fact, the chair of the

          9  Workforce Investment Broad has been apprised of this

         10  and this has been a discussion. And I should add

         11  because I went on the Workforce Investment Board and

         12  have been attending those meetings for the last

         13  year. This has actually been part of the agenda of

         14  that Board. Part of what the Department of

         15  Employment had been already doing under the

         16  leadership of Commission Wu, was to bring the

         17  business community more directly into the Workforce

         18  Investment Board by increasing their numbers as

         19  members on the Board. So, several of the last

         20  appointments are members of the business community.

         21                 In previous discussions that we've

         22  had at the Board, they're big interest has been to

         23  create an opportunity for -- to create better

         24  opportunities for linking the business community to

         25  the workforce investment strategies. So, we're in, I
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          2  think, in very good shape of the Workforce

          3  Investment Board. We're doing this.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: We experienced

          5  I think some frustration along the way in the last

          6  year and half on what I think was maybe under

          7  utilization of Workforce Investment Board. I'm glad

          8  to hear more business representation, more

          9  involvement. The last hearing we had that Commission

         10  Wu appeared at, I think, was the one time that I

         11  felt we had really seen a lot of rapid progress. And

         12  I appreciate that very much. I would certainly hope

         13  we expand on that. And that's a core concern here

         14  that this transition not undermine progress. So, let

         15  me go to very quickly, for example, the RFP process.

         16  I mean, we've talked a lot and we've had

         17  representatives from other cities in here about the

         18  kind of approach you're discussing. But taking it, I

         19  think, to a much more decentralized level. As you

         20  know Philadelphia, Los Angeles, some other

         21  localities one stop centers through the

         22  neighborhoods and literally dozens of one stop

         23  centers. And they've been very, very effective.

         24  We've been a little frustrated that we haven't been

         25  able to develop more around New York City more
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          2  quickly. So now in that transition, you could say

          3  it's reform. But you also could say, it could be an

          4  inadvertent opportunity for more delay. How do we

          5  ensure that existing RFP's and existing plans to

          6  develop more one stop centers are not derailed in

          7  the context of this transition?

          8                 MS. FUCHS: We have all intentions of

          9  moving forward with the RFP on the one stop system.

         10  The configuration of the one stop system will be

         11  reconsidered for a very brief time period. The next

         12  two to three months is what the Commissioners have

         13  agreed too. So, that we can integrate the community

         14  based programming that's being done already by DSBS

         15  with the one stop system that Commission Wu has put

         16  into place at the moment. The theory is and it is

         17  fairly easily to put into practice now because of

         18  the merger, is that we really haven't been

         19  adequately using our existing network of community

         20  based development corporations for workforce

         21  development.

         22                 DSBS has already been engaging in

         23  that process. In setting up their business centers,

         24  co- locating them with existing community

         25  development corporations. And one of the issues that
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          2  Commission Wu actually has began -- had began to

          3  address is this issue of how to do we involve much

          4  more directly all our rich network of neighborhood

          5  based community development associations that are

          6  already involved in training and workforce

          7  development. And even in business enhancement.

          8  Because, DOE was doing some of this business

          9  development also.

         10                 New York is somewhat different than

         11  other cities. Because we don't have to build -- we

         12  don't need money for bricks and mortar is really

         13  what I want to say here. We don't have to build one

         14  stop shops from scratch. Because, in many cities

         15  they don't have what we have. So, what we're doing

         16  now is effectively trying to create this network

         17  much more broadly than it exists right now with a

         18  kind of re- envisioned one stop system that includes

         19  more co- location with community based

         20  organizations. So, in spreading it around

         21  geographically more and using the technology to link

         22  up these organizations in a more effective way. But

         23  we will not be disrupting. We have no intentions of

         24  disrupting the services that we're providing now

         25  through the existing contractors. There is less
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          2  money in the system, I should add. Because of the

          3  federal governments and contracts themselves will

          4  not be as robust. But, we will not be disrupting

          5  those services. We will be expanding the one stop

          6  system in many ways probably more than we

          7  anticipated before because of the linkage with DSBS

          8  and it's network.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: So, in terms of

         10  the existing one stop model, I would say a

         11  governmentally based model, and/or the community

         12  organization based model, can you give us a

         13  projection for fiscal year '04? How many one stop

         14  centers of either or both kind will be up and

         15  running? Particularly, I am interested in the

         16  original government model. How many of those we'll

         17  have?

         18                 MS. FUCHS: Right now we have three up

         19  and running of the sort of formal one stops.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Right.

         21                 MS. FUCHS: They will continue to be

         22  up and running in the next round of this. We're not

         23  exactly sure whether there will be three more of

         24  these, two more of these or one more of those

         25  because that has to be determined in the next month
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          2  and a half. Very quickly given the allocations.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: So one to

          4  three?

          5                 MS. FUCHS: It's one to three more of

          6  these formal ones tops.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: And where will

          8  they be?

          9                 MS. FUCHS: And that's also part of

         10  the discussion right now. We're better able, I

         11  think, with the data that we can get through

         12  departmental planning and EDC to figure out where

         13  those should be located.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Obviously,

         15  we've love to know as soon as you have the basic

         16  plan.

         17                 MS. FUCHS: Yeah, and that is, to be

         18  perfectly blunt, really a result of looking at

         19  existing resources. We want to make sure that we can

         20  continue to provide the broader base services which

         21  are in play and the money allocation from the

         22  federal government has been significantly reduced

         23  for this coming fiscal year.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Right.

         25                 MS. FUCHS: So, we can't really do
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          2  everything. And I think this merger will allow us to

          3  do more than we would have been able to do leaving

          4  the Department of Employment standing alone.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: I think it

          6  would be healthy if we had some formal conversations

          7  between you and the committee to give us -- to give

          8  you some input on where we think the need is

          9  greatest. The feedback from our communities so it

         10  can help you in your planning process. If you are

         11  going to have to choose among communities.

         12                 MS. FUCHS: And that would be

         13  terrific. We're already getting feedback from the

         14  community based organizations where that need is.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Now in terms

         16  of, just very quickly, a few other items and I'll go

         17  to Council Member Quinn. The individual currently

         18  taking advantage of services through Department of

         19  Employment -- a displaced worker, someone trying to

         20  get into the workforce, how do we ensure that their

         21  individual connection is not broken in this

         22  transition?

         23                 MS. FUCHS: There's going to be no

         24  interruption of service. They will continue to be

         25  able to go to the existing three one stop's that we
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          2  have in place. And there will be absolutely no

          3  interruption of service. What we're going to be

          4  doing is providing more opportunities for service.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: So, they have a

          6  voucher currently or they're in the middle of any

          7  kind of processes --

          8                 MS. FUCHS: Right.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: -- Or anything

         10  bureaucratically that might disrupt that?

         11                 MS. FUCHS: Nothing. Absolutely

         12  nothing. I guarantee absolutely nothing. There are

         13   --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Please sign

         15  here.

         16                 MS. FUCHS: Yeah. And I had this

         17  conversation myself over and over again with OMB. We

         18  are committed to honoring any voucher that's been

         19  put out there with any organization that's

         20  responsible for doing those voucher related

         21  services. And we will be paying those bills. And

         22  that's part of the reason we have to, I think, this

         23  merger makes sense. Because I don't believe we would

         24  be able to provide the same array of services

         25  without the merger. As it is, we have less money for
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          2  everything.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Right. Let me

          4  ask both you and Deputy Commissioner Smith, the

          5  question either or both feel free to answer. In

          6  several of our hearings, we brought up the question

          7  of people on public assistance having maximum access

          8  to resources to go from welfare to work. The concern

          9  I have here is I was never particularly clear under

         10  Department of Employment how much that was

         11  happening. How are we going to ensure that is

         12  happening in this new plan?

         13                 MS. FUCHS: I can start on that and

         14  please feel free to chime in. The HRA has a it's own

         15  welfare to work program. Initially, we had decided

         16  as a City that we would provide some separate

         17  services for the unemployed and dislocated worker

         18  who were not on welfare. So, the system that we're

         19  constructing is primarily targeted for the non-

         20  public assistance population.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Sorry. We're

         22  having a technical difficulty. Say that sentence one

         23  more time.

         24                 MS. FUCHS: I was saying that the

         25  system we're constructing now is a continuation in
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          2  some sense of the Department of Employment model

          3  which is targeting the nonpublic assistance

          4  population.

          5                 MS. SMITH: Dr. Fuchs is correct. We

          6  have a series of vendors as I think you know are

          7  employment support vendors that people on public

          8  assistance currently access. They do access the

          9  training vouchers which eventually there's all kinds

         10  of fiscal implications. But they access training

         11  vouchers as well. And when they move from welfare to

         12  work, at that moment in time, they are still

         13  connected with our vendors, but they have the

         14  freedom to utilize the one stop centers and, in

         15  fact, are encouraged to do so. As are participants

         16  who receive services from HRA, who are not cash

         17  assistance participants, people on food stamps,

         18  people who receive other benefits. People who are

         19  not eligible for our benefits for whatever reason.

         20  They are encouraged to use the one stop system.

         21  We've always as you know that first one stop was

         22  when the responsibility was under HRA. So, we

         23  certainly are aware of what the one stop provides.

         24  And the expansion to the three current centers can

         25  only be enhanced by expansion to more centers and
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          2  more community based outposts.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: So you're

          4  optimistic that you're clients will be able to

          5  access this service?

          6                 MS. SMITH: When they need to. When

          7  they're not necessarily engaged with a vendor that

          8  we have then engaged in. And when they move from

          9  public assistance into the next phase of self-

         10  sufficiency, yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Lastly. On this

         12  item and then I would like to go to Council Member

         13  Serrano because Council Member Quinn just had

         14  something come up. The total dollar savings in the

         15  elimination of DOE, the moving of the functions to

         16  the other two agencies, what are you projecting

         17  right now?

         18                 MS. FUCHS: We're -- I had a sort of

         19  interesting discussion with OMB about this. And I

         20  don't think it's fair at this point to project

         21  significant savings from the merger at this moment.

         22  Because it will take a year. It will take a year

         23  before the savings kick in.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: I'm just

         25  confused. I think at one point, I don't know if this
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          2  was  --

          3                 MS. FUCHS: We want to reallocate.

          4  Whatever is saved from -- on the administrative

          5  side, we want to reallocate to the program side

          6  immediately here. Because there's just not enough

          7  money in the system altogether. So the agency will

          8  have -- as the savings come up, the agency will be

          9  able to reallocate the results of administrative

         10  duplication, essentially, to the program side.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: So that's -- I

         12  don't mean to put you on the spot, but that's a

         13  commitment that any savings stay in --

         14                 MS. FUCHS: For the moment. For the

         15  next fiscal year, yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: We appreciate

         17  that. Do you have a sense of when you would be able

         18  to project whatever that savings might be?

         19                 MS. FUCHS: I think within the next

         20  six months we'll have a better sense of the real

         21  savings from consolidation.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: So, I don't

         23  want to put words in your mouth. I just want to make

         24  sure I understand. The former position in

         25  administration, this is not a budget moved per say.
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          2  This is what you believe is a streamlining of

          3  service.

          4                 MS. FUCHS: Streamlining, yes.

          5  Correct. And it's a streamlining of services and

          6  it's more effective approach to service delivery.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Okay. I'll come

          8  back to with some other questions in a moment. Let

          9  me turn to --

         10                 MS. FUCHS: Just let me add to that.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Yeah.

         12                 MS. FUCHS: I think overall when you

         13  have in many ways two small agencies create an

         14  enormous overheads. So the simple way to think about

         15  this and I think everybody would agree is that in

         16  merging two small agencies, you will automatically

         17  have some significant savings in that kind of

         18  overhead. Because there are redundancies and

         19  function now in terms of overhead. So, we expect

         20  money to be saved by doing that as the transition

         21  proceeds. And we want that money to be refocused on

         22  programs.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Very good.

         24  Actually, I should learn from my previous experience

         25  with -- we have issues to ask at one more clarifying
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          2  question. Programs-- programs that provide direct

          3  service to clients through business services and

          4  youth development. In other words, that this money

          5  is not going to go into either other agencies or

          6  other functions within these agencies. It literally

          7  will go to workforce development efforts within

          8  business services and within DYCD.

          9                 MS. FUCHS: Well, the interesting

         10  thing about this merger is that both of those

         11  agencies are providing functions which are mandated

         12  under WIA. That's to say, DSBS and DOE were

         13  providing services that are mandated under WIA which

         14  are -- WIA mandates services both for the unemployed

         15  as well as through businesses to improve their

         16  ability to train and attract appropriate workers.

         17  So, I think the functions of that agency now just

         18  make more sense. And the savings will be allocated

         19  accordingly under the guidelines of WIA. The savings

         20  will primarily come on the federal dollar side and

         21  will have to be allocated according to the WIA

         22  guidelines.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Well, again --

         24                 MS. FUCHS: So, that's how I would

         25  formulate it.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: I just wanted

          3  to understand what the Administration position is

          4  separate from the federal guidelines. Because we've

          5  had some concerns the federal guidelines are less

          6  than clear. You're saying the money gets sent to

          7  additional service provision, more workforce

          8  development in those two agencies as opposed to

          9  other totally different functions in those agencies?

         10                 MS. FUCHS: I guess the way I would

         11  formulate it is slightly different. Right now, those

         12  two agencies whether it is DSBS or DYCD are

         13  providing the same kinds of services and we can't

         14  use WIA dollars for anything that is not in

         15  accordance with the WIA guidelines. Whether it's in

         16  DSBS or DYCD. So, if we save money, for example,

         17  that it relates to youth employment, DYCD is doing

         18  that kind of programming anyway. Both using WIA and

         19  non- WIA dollars. That's where it would have to end

         20  up So, I don't think maybe we're saying the same

         21  thing. But I think the best way to think about this

         22  is that we've reconfigured service delivery and put

         23  two programs from one agency into the appropriate

         24  locations in other agencies which were already

         25  providing those programs. When you think about it,
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          2  it just didn't -- it doesn't really make sense to

          3  have the adult programs and the youth programs in

          4  the same agency just because they came from the one

          5  federal funding stream. Functionally, you want the

          6  youth programs to go with the youth agency and the

          7  adult or course development programs to be in a

          8  model where you have workforce development and

          9  economic development.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: I would just

         11  ask that you help us to understand as your plans

         12  progress exactly where any savings may go.

         13                 MS. FUCHS: Absolutely.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Because I would

         15  simply say --

         16                 MS. FUCHS: Absolutely.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: -- That, this

         18  is in reference to the previous Administration much

         19  more than this one, that I don't think you can say

         20  you are looking WIA dollars were used previously. I

         21  don't think you can say that because of the federal

         22  guidelines, the money ended up consistently going to

         23  direct service provision. I think money was used on

         24  a variety of other things as well. And we would

         25  really like to see WIA dollars go to workforce
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          2  development directly and specifically. So if you

          3  could help us understand as your plans progress,

          4  that would help.

          5                 MS. FUCHS: No, that's makes sense.

          6  But I would also add that since our Administration

          7  begin, we've made a very, very significant effort to

          8  make sure that WIA dollars go to programs

          9  appropriate for WIA funding.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Thank you.

         11  Council Member Serrano.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SERRANO: Thank you,

         13  Mr. Chairman. Dr. Fuchs, very quick question. What

         14  is the purpose of the proposed amendment to

         15  Subdivision B of Section 617 of the Charter?

         16                 MS. FUCHS: Subdivision B. Section

         17  what? Could you repeat that?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SERRANO: Subdivision B

         19  of Section 617.

         20                 MS. FUCHS: What page are you on?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SERRANO: It's the

         22  first page of the bill.

         23                 MS. FUCHS: Oh. Okay. It says about

         24  moving childcare enforcement. You could have said

         25  that. Okay. Okay. To put it, I hope, succinctly, and
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          2  I try to say this in my testimony. Childcare

          3  enforcement is a program that already is integrated

          4  with HRA. And so, the idea is that you are going

          5  after a noncustodial parent who is not paying child

          6  support. What we currently try to do is also link

          7  that with the public assistance eligibility process.

          8  Simply put, HRA has a better capacity to do this now

          9  given that is does the public assistance

         10  eligibility.

         11                 It is already working with ACS to do

         12  it. To have it split, just created unnecessary

         13  inefficiencies. So, we're basically doing with I

         14  would consider to be kind of simple administrative

         15  move. So that we can better perform this function.

         16  It's very important to get -- to be able to get the

         17  dollars from noncustodial parents when they're

         18  required to support children. And this will, I'm

         19  convinced, allow us to do it in a more efficient

         20  way.

         21                 On the eligibility function, this is

         22  part of a larger set of issues related to

         23  eligibility in general for clients who are applying

         24  for means tested and work support programs.

         25  Childcare, particularly, is a very, very important
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          2  issue for public assistance recipients. Not only

          3  while they're on public assistance, but particularly

          4  when they move off of public assistance to work.

          5                 So, in a broader effort that the

          6  Administration is engaging in, to streamline

          7  eligibility -- I wish I had a chart here that I'm

          8  actually putting together for your Technology

          9  Committee which shows where clients have to go now

         10  in order be screened and become eligible for the 60

         11  odd means tested and work support programs that we

         12  administer as a City.

         13                 I mean, you're going to at least 15-

         14  20 different locations. That is one of the problems.

         15  The other problem is also essentially a technology

         16  problem. So, we have a problem on the client side

         17  which is because locations are different, they have

         18  to go to too many places, produce the documents over

         19  and over again. It's a very insufficient process.

         20                 Then from the City's perspective, HRA

         21  has the best technology in place right now. We're

         22  essentially trying to integrate much of the other

         23  social service network into the HRA mainframe and

         24  their technology structure.

         25                 What this will allow us to do for
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          2  childcare services is essentially more quickly do

          3  that under the umbrella of HRA's existing

          4  technology. And what it will allow essentially is

          5  HRA to use its existing POS system. It's paperless

          6  office system. So that when you scan in a birth

          7  certificate for PA, you will also have that copy

          8  available when you going in for eligibility for

          9  childcare.

         10                 So, this is I think -- this will be a

         11  model for us as an Administration and as a City of

         12  making an effort -- making our first effort to

         13  promote an integrated eligibility approach to means

         14  tested services and to work support services for a

         15  variety of clients all over the City. This one

         16  really made the most sense at this point

         17  particularly because the childcare issue is so

         18  essential to a successful transition from public

         19  assistance to work. I'm sorry if that was a long

         20  winded answer.

         21                 CHAIR MEMBER SERRANO: No.

         22                 MS. FUCHS: It's an occupational

         23  hazard. I forgot what I used to do. And then I

         24  caught myself.

         25                 CHAIR MEMBER SERRANO: And I apologize
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          2  for my overly technical sounding question. I just

          3  read what's in front of me.

          4                 Now, you did give a lot of detail in

          5  your answer. But in a nut shell, do you feel that

          6  what you just explained to me, the essence of it, is

          7  explicit in the bill as written?

          8                 MS. FUCHS: The bill is written

          9  perfectly to cover this, yes.

         10                 CHAIR MEMBER SERRANO: All right.

         11  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Thank you,

         13  Council Member Serrano. I've got one more question

         14  on employment and then I want to go to several

         15  childcare questions again. Some of our colleagues

         16  might come in with other questions before this panel

         17  is done.

         18                 I think one issue that's a little

         19  unclear in the transfer of the functions from DOE to

         20  Business Services is how do you integrate the

         21  efforts to connect folks in need of employment and

         22  get folks the proper training for employment with

         23  both small business and larger corporations.

         24                 I mean, I'm very quick to say that

         25  small business in many ways is the employment engine
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          2  and I have a lot of faith, again, in this

          3  department, but I also know that under this

          4  Administration the focus of the Department has

          5  really put on small business. So, how do you ensure

          6  that we don't miss opportunities with larger

          7  corporations?

          8                 MS. FUCHS: That is a really good

          9  question. And I think we've thought about that as

         10  well. And there are really two answers to that

         11  question. One is that in the context of the

         12  Department of Employment, the linkages to larger

         13  businesses had already started. That in a bizarre

         14  way is some ways easier. You can identify the Dwane

         15  Reed's and the CVS's and the Modell's and the large

         16  retailers, for example, that need workforce training

         17  for their kinds of jobs. The banks that need the

         18  tellers and we've been -- that process has started.

         19  I think is moving along fairly vigorously. What we

         20  get from DSBS is twofold. We get the small business

         21  piece which is much more difficult to link with. And

         22  they already have developed that network. And we

         23  just didn't want to do it again. It would have been

         24  extremely insufficient for Department of Employment

         25  to have to go out and redevelop that.
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          2                 The other answer to your question is

          3  that the linkages between DSBS and EDC are direct

          4  and effective. The Economic Development set of

          5  agencies which reports to Deputy Mayor Doctoroff are

          6  all under his umbrella. So that Commissioner Walsh

          7  has direct access to EDC in a much, I think, easier

          8  way than we had in the previous configuration of

          9  having this activity over at the Department of

         10  Employment. So, that we will be able to now, I

         11  think, engage EDC for help with the businesses that

         12  they work with in really linking them much more

         13  closely to their workforce development needs.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Okay. Let me

         15  now take you to some childcare issues. Now first,

         16  let me just ask some sort of a foundational

         17  question. In the view of the Administration, does

         18  this legislation include anything in the childcare

         19  area beyond the transfer of the eligibility process

         20  from ACS to HRA?

         21                 MS. FUCHS: Okay. That's what I

         22  thought. It could if the Mayor wanted to transfer

         23  other things. At the moment, it doesn't.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: I just want to

         25  make sure I understand. You're saying it could
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          2  because it's written broadly or you're --

          3                 MS. FUCHS: Right.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: -- Saying it

          5  could because you might amend it or request

          6  amendment of it?

          7                 MS. FUCHS: It could because the first

          8  part of the legislation is written broadly.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Okay. So, I'm

         10  going to ask questions assuming that you might end

         11  up interpreting. And, again, this has a lot to do

         12  with our legislative process here. But just

         13  referring to your interpretation as the sponsoring

         14  entity that you might up end interpreting this to

         15  include the transfer of the service provision in --

         16  from ACS to DYCD. So, let me go over that quickly.

         17  The bottom line numbers we've heard are that you

         18  project a savings of $15 million by transferring

         19  certain childcare functions from ACS to DYCD. Is

         20  that still -- $15 million for FY04, I should note.

         21  Is that still your official number?

         22                 MS. FUCHS: Now you're not talking

         23  about eligibility now?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: No. Again, my

         25  first question was to say did you interpret --
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          2                 MS. FUCHS: Okay.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  -- It to

          4  involve anything beyond eligibility.

          5                 MS. FUCHS: Okay.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: And I think you

          7  said yes.

          8                 MS. FUCHS: Now we're moving on.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: So, I'm now

         10  saying since you interpret it and, again, I want to

         11  always emphasize the legislature is the legislature

         12  will go --

         13                 MS. FUCHS: Go ahead. I'm fine.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: -- Or we go.

         15  But since you interpreted it to be broader, let's go

         16  straight to the question of childcare services.

         17                 MS. FUCHS: Good. Okay.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: The last

         19  proposal we heard was a $15 million dollars savings

         20  proposed for FY04 in the specific transfer of

         21  certain services from ACS to DYCD. So I want to

         22  verify. Is $15 million --

         23                 MS. FUCHS: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: -- Still what

         25  your projecting?
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          2                 MS. FUCHS: That's correct.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Okay. Now, I

          4  think there is still quite a bit of doubt, with all

          5  due respect, quite a bit of doubt out there of how

          6  that much savings can be achieved without reducing

          7  either the quality or quantity of service.

          8  Particularly on that tight of timeline. Can you

          9  speak to that?

         10                 MS. FUCHS: I think the issues are

         11  somewhat complex. But let me try and simplify to the

         12  extent that I can. Right now, what we have in place

         13  is a wide, wide range of services for after school

         14  programs for kids. In the context of providing those

         15  services, we pay a variety of different fees for the

         16  same services. We have very little capacity to

         17  evaluate quality of those services. And we're aware

         18  from the variety of models out there that services

         19   -- that the similar kinds of services can be

         20  provided for less. So, we have two objectives in

         21  this transfer.

         22                 One is by really putting all of after

         23  school services under DYCD's umbrella, we can

         24  develop a model of childcare services that make

         25  sense for the needs of kids and families in New
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          2  York. And what I mean by make sense is that it

          3  provides a whole wide range of choices that relate

          4  to improving kids, very specific needs related to

          5  the educational function, to the pedagogic functions

          6  of the school that link kids to the curriculum that

          7  use teachers in some of those functions. Certified

          8  teachers where necessary. Then moving it down to

          9  sports based, art based, the whole variety of other

         10  things that use volunteers and that use high school

         11  kids and that use other non- certified personnel.

         12                 In looking at the evaluations of some

         13  of these programs that we have in place, whether

         14  they're the Beacons or tasks or some of the existing

         15  daycare model evaluations, I think it's clear at

         16  this point to make one very simple observation.

         17  Which is, that we're not spending our dollars in a

         18  way that relates to the outcomes that we're getting.

         19  Which is to say, some services are more expensive.

         20  But they're not more expensive because they're

         21  providing better services or what the market place

         22  would call more expensive services. Which tend to be

         23  the services provided by teachers and educationally

         24  related. It's just sort of an accident of history.

         25  This particular whole formulation of after school
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          2  services is an accident of history of essentially

          3  layering bureaucracy with siloed programs and

          4  agencies that have little capacity to coordinate

          5  with each other.

          6                 I think you're aware of this as well

          7  as I am that this is an opportunity now to provide

          8  some coherence to the after school program. And

          9  what's clearly going to be one of the outcomes. And

         10  I'm convinced now by looking at the data is that we

         11  will save money doing this. We are not -- I have to

         12  just say sort of one more simple fact. Which is that

         13  the spending in the after school programs just

         14  simply doesn't relate in any kind of realistic way

         15  to a kind of normal costing process that would do in

         16  any kind of not- for- profit or any business that

         17  was providing these programs. Both as a result of

         18  consolidation under one agency and trying to target

         19  our scarce resources more efficiently, we expect to

         20  produce these savings.

         21                 Having said that, we have this

         22  timeline now for these savings which is the next

         23  fiscal year. But I'm prepared to go with DYCD back

         24  to OMB if this is not achievable. But we have it as

         25  a target in the budget as achievable.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: You know that

          3  in recent negotiations between the Council and the

          4  Mayor and this was a high priority to ensure that

          5  there would not be any cut in services. I understand

          6  if I hear your theory correctly, there might be a

          7  way to achieve the same services with less money and

          8  we would all applaud that if that's really the same

          9  services. But one of the things the Council has

         10  made, I think, one of our highest priorities is

         11  childcare. And we're going to be monitoring very

         12  closely throughout this process. Because, I think,

         13  there is just a native doubt running through all of

         14  us that that much savings can be achieved on this

         15  tight a timeline without some actual service

         16  reductions.

         17                 Let me go to some of the subset

         18  pieces here. And let me start maybe with just the

         19  reality of transition. I think this is a much more

         20  complex dynamic than the transition we just

         21  discussed previously. Both because of the fact that

         22  we're providing what I would just phrase, a more

         23  active service. Not so much in the area of workforce

         24  development where sort of people come to you. But a

         25  service that's under way that's very foundational in

                                                            51

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  people's lives and here in particular when you take

          3  the transition you're discussing and try and

          4  parallel it or integrate it with the transitions

          5  going on at the Department of Education on this

          6  tight of a timeline. I'm just as a observer of

          7  bureaucracy, it seems to me that that's a very, very

          8  tall order.

          9                 So, how you can say at the outset

         10  that there will not be disruption in service. Put

         11  aside for a moment, the quality of service question

         12  which we'll keep coming back to. But how can you say

         13  there won't be a disruption in service where people

         14  currently getting the service will not somehow lose

         15  it in this transition?

         16                 MS. FUCHS: Okay. Well, as part of the

         17  transition plan, anybody who is registered in

         18  existing services will continue to get those

         19  services as they exist. So we're envisioning, in a

         20  sense, two parallel tracks. The other way -- and

         21  you're absolutely right. This is complicated. But to

         22  be perfectly honest, we need to do this now and the

         23  unfortunate part of fiscal crisis is that we have

         24  less money to do the creative things that we should

         25  probably being engaging in when we have more money.
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          2  But, when we have more money, there seems to be no

          3  impetus or energy to be creative. So having said

          4  that conundrum that we often find ourselves in, it

          5  doesn't mean that we should sort of rest back and

          6  assume it's a moment that this is not a good time to

          7  be creative. So when you do this kind of complicated

          8  restructuring and you're absolutely right, it is

          9  complicated, we have to do it in some sense on

         10  parallel tracks. We cannot interrupt services. We

         11  have to keep services going to clients as they exist

         12  so that they know and they can predict particularly

         13  in childcare and I couldn't agree with you more.

         14  Interrupting childcare services can be the worst

         15  thing that happens to working parents or parents on

         16  welfare because that's the thing that we are most

         17  concerned with in our lives and worry about the

         18  most. So, we will not be interrupting those

         19  services. But, what we will be doing is in a sense

         20  creating parallel tracks as we continue services

         21  that we are providing. We will be working to create

         22  this new model of service delivery to be implemented

         23  in stages so that those who are in existing services

         24  can continue.

         25                 At a certain point in this system, we
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          2  will stop enrolling individuals -- new individuals

          3  for example, in the current system of daycare as we

          4  know it. Unless it becomes part of the existing

          5  service delivery continuum that we're putting into

          6  place. So, what we're doing very quickly and we have

          7  been meeting on this now for weeks, is to develop a

          8  conservice delivery continuum that we think matches

          9  what parents need and what kids want. And what

         10  really the communities engaged in this believe need

         11  to be out there. In getting some reasonable cost

         12  assessments of what they've -- what they will cost.

         13  And then working with -- what we intend to do is

         14  working with existing providers to implement that

         15  new model. But you're right that it's complicated

         16  and I just have to emphasize that we're creating two

         17  tracks. A transition track which will include

         18  essentially keeping these services in place until

         19  there really is a new service delivery model

         20  functioning out there that will be implemented in

         21  stages so as to not interrupt parents access to

         22  childcare.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: So just to get

         24  the ground rules straight here. As this transition

         25  continues and it does take place, do you believe you
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          2  will be serving at least as many children as you are

          3  now?

          4                 MS. FUCHS: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Okay. And if

          6  you find that in the transition there is a

          7  disruption of service, what is your intention? What

          8  is your assumption of how you would deal with that?

          9                 MS. FUCHS: We will implement a model

         10  that does not disrupt service. I think I can say

         11  that pretty clearly. We're not going to take

         12  anything down until we have something to put in its

         13  place.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Let me ask you

         15  this just to clarify on a previous point. If you

         16  find that you try everything and you cannot achieve

         17  the savings without reducing service, are you

         18  therefore committed to finding additional resources

         19  to ensure there won't be service reductions?

         20                 MS. FUCHS: I know that this

         21  Administration and the Mayor is committed as the

         22  City Council is to providing quality childcare. And

         23  so, the best I can say at this point is that we have

         24  created a target. We expect to achieve that target.

         25  But as the Mayor has said in many other occasions,
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          2  if we make mistakes and if it cannot work, we're

          3  willing to revisit things. But at the moment, we

          4  have this $15 million dollar target and we expect to

          5  achieve it. And I really believe that if you don't

          6  create a target, you will never achieve it. You must

          7  have that in place. You must have a goal in place or

          8  it becomes unachievable. I don't know how you go

          9  about creating new plans without goals. So, we need

         10  to have this goal in place now.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Let me ask you

         12  about the quality and quantity impact of this. The

         13  type of service children will receive, meaning

         14  whatever level of educational service and the

         15  quality of the programming, will that change the

         16  hours that they will receive the service and the

         17  days they will receive service? One of the concerns,

         18  of course, has been at the extent any of this is

         19  linked to the school calendar. It's a much less

         20  generous calendar than the current one to the extent

         21  that you use a different type of personnel there

         22  might be less educational content to the services

         23  provided. Can you speak to that?

         24                 MS. FUCHS: We have to create a

         25  variety of services here. Because there are parents
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          2  who need the kind of services that are linked to the

          3  school calendar. We have no intentions of

          4  interrupting that. We must create that. And there

          5  are mandated services here. For particular classes

          6  of parents which have to be provided in terms of

          7  after school services. So, we will have to -- we

          8  will have to and we must and we should continuing

          9  providing that. Then we will determine our plan

         10  partly based upon the dollars that are available

         11  there. The decision about breathe versus depth in

         12  sense, how many people we will serve versus the

         13  depth of the services provided will be a balance

         14  that we will have to come to after we determine

         15  services for the mandated population. Because, I

         16  think, right now we will all agree that we could be

         17  doing infinitely more for after school services and

         18  for kids in this context. We do not provide enough.

         19                 We also know that we don't have the

         20  dollars to provide it for everybody who needs it or

         21  for that matter everybody who wants it. So, we'll

         22  have to create this balance between what we're

         23  mandated to provide and then what we think as a City

         24  we should be doing it. And I expect as we move

         25  forward on this, we will be consulting with you and
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          2  your committee intensely about this question of

          3  breath versus depth of services. Because there is a

          4  trade off here. The fiscal realities are that we

          5  don't have enough money in this area or as much

          6  money as we would like to have regardless.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Do you -- are

          8  you therefore saying that you don't anticipate the

          9  calendar changing? In other words, the number of

         10  days a family gets childcare and the hours per day

         11  they get it. You don't anticipate changes in that?

         12                 MS. FUCHS: Well, for the families who

         13  need that and are mandated for us providing that,

         14  that will not change. We have to provide that

         15  through certain families. And we will continue to

         16  provide that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: But for

         18  families --

         19                 MS. FUCHS: There are a lot of

         20  families now who would love free childcare.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Now your

         22  existing case load, if you will, I'm saying the

         23  existing families, if you're committed to not having

         24  a disruption in services --

         25                 MS. FUCHS: Yeah.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: -- Does that

          3  mean you're also committed to them getting the same

          4  amount of hours and days that they're currently

          5  getting under this plan?

          6                 MS. FUCHS: Yeah, I think that it's

          7  fair to say that what we're trying to do is keep

          8  that in place. Which is to say the families who are

          9  accessing that type of service and need that, keep

         10  that in place. We're trying to reduce costs in that

         11  model. And in a sense, we're trying to offer more

         12  opportunities for families then to decide whether

         13  they're in a model that they really wanted now or

         14  they're just in the model because that's all that

         15  was there.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Are you also

         17  saying that you're considering ways to increase the

         18  number of children who receive this service, but

         19  perhaps changing or reducing the quality of the

         20  service? I don't want to use that as an editorial

         21  comment. I mean to say a different type of service

         22  that might reach more people. Is that part of what

         23  you're saying?

         24                 MS. FUCHS: I would not use the word

         25  quality. Because I think we have a very uneven
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          2  quality right now. So, what could be an outcome here

          3  is that there is more opportunities available to a

          4  larger number of families and kids.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: So more

          6  children might get some type of service under this

          7  plan?

          8                 MS. FUCHS: That's right.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Do you have any

         10  projection?

         11                 MS. FUCHS: No.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Do you know

         13  when you might have a projection?

         14                 MS. FUCHS: Six to eight months is a

         15  realistic way to think about this.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: So this is very

         17  much a phased transition?

         18                 MS. FUCHS: Phased, yes. Absolutely

         19  phased. And I used that word before and I'm glad you

         20  picked that up. And that's part of the reason where

         21  I feel --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: That's your

         23  prophetical side is still working.

         24                 MS. FUCHS: That's right. I'm just

         25  noticing whose paying attention.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: You've got to

          3  use the word the professor uses.

          4                 MS. FUCHS: I mean, the Councilman who

          5  criticized me for his -- he's gone already, right?

          6  You're the only one holding down the ship here  --.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Yeah, it's

          8  tough.

          9                 MS. FUCHS: -- Councilman DeBlasio.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: I've been

         11  deserted.

         12                 MS. FUCHS: You've gotta pay

         13  attention. Right?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Today's word

         15  ladies and gentlemen, is phased. We're going to have

         16  a screen where we put the big word up.

         17                 MS. FUCHS: Sesame street muppets up

         18  here. We could have used a little help. Right?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: That's right.

         20  Well, look, I think just to state to close this

         21  point and I have several others. But to close this

         22  point, I understand that's attractive to concept

         23  that what we have now might not work for everyone.

         24  That we might not be getting as much for our dollar.

         25  I understand all of that. But the bottom line is, I
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          2  think, we have a situation where in many instances

          3  it ain't broke and we don't want to fix it.

          4                 MS. FUCHS: Right.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: And so the

          6  question is, how do we ensure the maximum level of

          7  quality. I will use that word. For the maximum

          8  number of families as is appropriate to them. We

          9  would be very interested to have a dialogue with you

         10  if there is a way to reach more families.

         11                 MS. FUCHS: Right.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: But we

         13  certainly don't want to lose some of the benefits of

         14  what we have now because, again, from the level of

         15  listening to our constituents, a lot of people are

         16  very pleased with the services. Particularly where

         17  it does involve a curriculum side --

         18                 MS. FUCHS: Right.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: -- Or an

         20  educational side that helps move their kids forward.

         21  So, we're very concerned not to lose that in this

         22  transition. Let me ask and this is a question I need

         23  to ask you and probably Deputy Commissioner Newman

         24  and the representative of the DYCD as well. There

         25  have been concerns raised and some numbers out there
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          2  that a number of the existing non- profits or the

          3  actual childcare centers at least might face closure

          4  as a result of this transition. I think we have to

          5  separate the question of how you would provide the

          6  service to existing customers from the question of

          7  what happens to neighborhood based organizations

          8  that not just do this, but do other things. And

          9  would be losing so much of their revenue that might

         10  undermine their ability to provide other services.

         11  We've heard estimates as high as 30 centers

         12  throughout New York City might be threatened just

         13  budgetary if this transition goes through. So I

         14  could ask all of you together to respond to that.

         15  How many centers do you think might be in danger.

         16  What do you think the impact would be on the ground

         17  of that?

         18                 MS. FUCHS: Let me answer that

         19  question first because it's come up in repeated

         20  circles and the concern is real. And we understand

         21  from the perspective of the providers that they are

         22  concerned. It's not our intention to close daycare

         23  centers now. One of the things that will happen is

         24  as we move in some instances, after school programs

         25  may move out lock, stock and barrel ultimately from
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          2  the daycare model. In some instances, they may stay.

          3  We really can't answer that question yet. But let's

          4  assume for the moment there are some instances in

          5  which the daycare programs move out. We intend to

          6  work with these organizations to potentially re-

          7  populate their centers with early childhood or to

          8  work with them to figure out how to provide their

          9  service in a different way that might meet the

         10  standards that we're going to hold agencies to for

         11  the provision of after school services. So there's

         12  nothing in this plan right now -- nothing in this

         13  plan right now that says that these agencies will

         14  have to close down because we change how we deliver

         15  services. I think part of it is and forgive me for

         16  the competition model, because I know we're not used

         17  to this model in this area. But when you're in a

         18  market location where you are a Bodoga (phonetic)

         19  and you're selling a variety of commodities and

         20  Pathmark opens up. In most instances, you'll find

         21  that the Bodoga's do not close down with competition

         22  from Pathmark. They decide to provide a different

         23  set of services that the consumers might need. And

         24  in this instance, I would say, in the daycare model,

         25  what we will have to work toward with them as we
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          2  move forward on this and determine exactly what we

          3  need from the daycare model. They will have to work

          4  with us to provide the services that we determine as

          5  a City are needed for our kids in these communities.

          6                 I really believe that's the way to

          7  look at it. There is no place in the proposal right

          8  now where we're saying we're just shutting down

          9  daycare centers. We're just not. Part of it will be

         10  over time. It will be up to the daycare center to

         11  re- tool and accommodate if they are -- if, in fact,

         12  the nature of the service delivery models change.

         13  And Councilman DeBlasio, I actually believe that is

         14  a legitimate request for us as a City government to

         15  request from providers who do these services. We

         16  have to work with them. They are extremely important

         17  to us. But we also have to have the capacity at the

         18  government to evaluate what these providers are

         19  doing in concert with the communities that they

         20  serve and in concert, of course, with the City

         21  Council and determine whether this is the best way

         22  to spend our dollars. Particularly in a time when

         23  there are scarce resources.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: I understand

         25  the theory. I respect it. Let me just make sure
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          2  you're hearing my concern properly. I don't think

          3  anyone opposes competition if it results in a better

          4  service to the citizenry. That's the bottom line.

          5  None of us are here to protect institutions for the

          6  sake of protecting institutions. These are our

          7  constituents. With all due respect to the

          8  Mayorility, we live the everyday life in each

          9  neighborhood. So our ultimate masters are the people

         10  who get the service. So, it's not about institutions

         11  alone. I would just challenge your example a little

         12  respectfully. Because the different here is --

         13  obviously this is an area where not only do you not

         14  make a profit, but there's so many challenges for

         15  any capable organization. Even the best organization

         16  and the best managed organization faces financial

         17  challenges and other challenges all the time. I

         18  think what you hear from Council Members is we value

         19  these organizations because we desperately need

         20  decentralization of services in New York City. Just

         21  by the nature of New York City. When we don't have

         22  active strong local organizations responding to

         23  local needs, a lot of people go unserved. So, we

         24  don't want to throb the baby with the baby water.

         25  And we're in the middle of a fiscal crisis which
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          2  means all but funding sources, City, state, federal,

          3  private, foundation, et cetera are being reduced

          4  simultaneously. So, again even a well managed

          5  organization might be feeling an unusual level of

          6  strain.

          7                 I guess I want to get to the

          8  philosophical point. Are you philosophically trying

          9  to protect effective community organizations? Is the

         10  goal of this reorganization that -- the community

         11  organization is functionally reasonably well, that

         12  you have an interest in keeping it in business?

         13                 MS. FUCHS: Absolutely. I think you've

         14  stated that very eloquently. Community organizations

         15  is the lifeline of the City. We need them not to

         16  just provide services. They provide the continuity

         17  within neighborhoods among generations. We could not

         18  function as a City now without effective community

         19  based services. I think the key to what you just

         20  said is effective. We intend to work with these

         21  organizations to make them more effective and to

         22  help them operate within a service delivery model

         23  that we as a City determine. So, our problem is

         24  twofold. We have scarce resources at the City. We

         25  have community based organizations which are also
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          2  struggling. I think that there is, you know, a huge

          3  variety in spectrum in terms of the quality and

          4  ability of community based organizations to provide

          5  services. We have to do a better job both of

          6  evaluating and providing feedback to these

          7  organizations and linking them to the capacity

          8  building revenues that are available, for example,

          9  from foundations when they need it. This

         10  Administration has, I believe, been working very

         11  effectively with the foundation community, for

         12  example, to do these kinds of things in other

         13  arenas. We're committed to bringing them in this

         14  arena as well. I think it's very important for us to

         15  keep those linkages going. To keep that conversation

         16  open and to provide the feedback to the

         17  organizations and to get the feedback from the

         18  organizations so that this becomes a collaborative

         19  process.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Let me just

         21  caution that. We, again, a lot of us at the Council

         22  have a lot of respect for our colleagues at the

         23  Department of Education. We respect a lot of what

         24  they're to achieve. But one thing I think we felt

         25  along the way was that the conversation with the
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          2  Council and with the communities didn't exist

          3  sufficiently at some points along the way. I just

          4  want to caution that top down reform has real

          5  limits. Reform that is -- involves locally elected

          6  representatives in the community is more likely to

          7  succeed. So, obviously this is a piece of

          8  legislation that has to ultimately be approved here.

          9  So what I would caution on is that we ensure there's

         10  a lot of consultation with the Council Members and

         11  other community leaders to determine their sense of

         12  what groups are affected as well. And beyond any

         13  issue of local politics or anything else. What is

         14  their experience for organizations, I think, there's

         15  crucial feedback in that, that you won't get just

         16  from the Administration side. That really should be

         17  sought. Let me ask the representatives of --

         18                 MS. FUCHS: Can I just add to that?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Please.

         20                 MS. FUCHS: Because I think that's

         21  important. I think that's part of the reason why

         22  DYCD is such a perfect agency for doing this now.

         23  They have that collaborative model in place. They

         24  have a Youth Council operating already which we

         25  expect to expand in some way to work on the new
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          2  issues that they have to deal with right now. We

          3  strongly agree that in order to make this model

          4  work, it will require the engagement of all the

          5  stake holders.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Let me ask the

          7  representatives of ACS and DYCD just to expand on

          8  the point about what steps you can take to ensure

          9  that non-profits, again, that are affected are not

         10  threatened with closure in this transition. Do you

         11  have any other comments on that?

         12                 ^^ MS. MILLER: I would like to start

         13  by saying that the other half of our portfolio is

         14  community development. So, we are very aware of the

         15  need for social services in the community. We have

         16  about 1,800 private non- profits that we work with

         17  on a regular basis. Most private non- profits in

         18  this City have at one point or another dealt with

         19  DYCD.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Thank you.

         21                 MR. NEWMAN: It's clear that with the

         22  loss of $59 million dollars in our budget, we're

         23  going to have to make some adjustments in the

         24  system. But at the same point, there is a transfer

         25  of responsibility of DYCD that we'll give community
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          2  based to organizations new opportunities that didn't

          3  exist before. Neither of us, open or closed non-

          4  profit organizations, we offer RFP's and contracts

          5  for services in a competitive basis according to the

          6  procurement rules and we will continue to do that.

          7  As part of that process, there is a dialogue about

          8  the requirements of contracts. The RFP's in both

          9  agencies that design to be responsive to need, cost,

         10  quality, and we will continue to do that in dialogue

         11  with the community agencies and sister agencies and

         12  City government.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: I'm glad you

         14  answer that way because I think it points out --

         15  keep the microphone because I have a follow- up for

         16  it. It points out the question difference between

         17  looking at this as simply a procurement question --

         18  looking at this as a larger community development

         19  question. And again, I can't emphasize enough.

         20  Unless someone has a crystal ball and can tell us

         21  when both the larger economic crisis will end and

         22  when the fiscal crisis will end, I presume that

         23  local non- profits are going to feel the effects of

         24  this era for at least two or three years. And it's

         25  going to be hard for them to have the kind of level
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          2  of security of funding that they've experienced

          3  maybe in the middle of the '90's until we get to the

          4  middle of this decade. What I would be concern is

          5  that we not just look at as a simple procurement

          6  issue. Particularly from the time point view of the

          7  Mayor's office, we're looking at the value of

          8  keeping capable organizations alive and trying to be

          9  there to reinforce them even if in procurement

         10  terms, they're not getting some what they

         11  historically got.

         12                 MS. FUCHS: Can I answer that? Because

         13  I think we can -- I think Harvey was really

         14  referring to the RFP process as a competitive

         15  process. I think that's an important point that he

         16  made. On the issues of community development and

         17  then on the issue of keeping not- for- profits

         18  alive, I think we cannot guarantee any one

         19  particular not- for- profit that we are going to

         20  keep them alive. What we can guarantee is that we

         21  will work with all the agencies that we've worked

         22  with in the past and hopefully some new agencies

         23  that are emerging out there now. And that we will

         24  make every effort to continue supporting both

         25  through City funds and through linkages to
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          2  foundations, the not- for- profits, the community

          3  based organizations that have been working

          4  effectively to provide services in communities.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: I understand.

          6  Deputy Commissioner Newman, the impact of this

          7  significant amount of funding leading the agency. I

          8  understand you've had functions lead with it. But is

          9  this going to have any other kind of impact on your

         10  abilities to provide the other types of services

         11  that you are providing in terms of childcare?

         12                 MR. NEWMAN: Hopefully, we can through

         13  a sensible and using common sense, develop a

         14  stronger system of what remains. So that we can

         15  target the preschool programs and reinforce those

         16  that are the best in each community. Make the

         17  linkages within the network even stronger and tie

         18  them to the neighborhood based services systems that

         19  ACS has been developing. And to really build a

         20  childcare system as part of the broader child

         21  service system as it is in ACS and DYCD. So, we are

         22  trying to look at this in the most opportunistic

         23  way. In this process of restructuring, how can we

         24  make agencies stronger and the system that serves

         25  children even stronger.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: But in that

          3  answer, are you saying you're confident that there

          4  will not be any reduction of service in the programs

          5  that you continue to have under your umbrella?

          6                 MR. NEWMAN: We can only provide what

          7  we can support with our budget. As the budget

          8  changes and under these tight fiscal times, we have

          9  to as do all other agencies respond to those

         10  changes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: As a result of

         12  this restructuring, you're saying you can't

         13  guarantee that it wouldn't have a negative effect on

         14  your existing programs?

         15                 MR. NEWMAN: I'm comfortable that we

         16  can continue the level of service to preschool

         17  children who remain in the system. That we can

         18  continue the kind of responsiveness to those

         19  families who choose vouchers so that they can

         20  selectively use services that meet their family

         21  needs and hopefully through a structured planning

         22  effort make the system stronger.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: One last

         24  question, Dr. Fuchs, on the larger piece here. And I

         25  just want to take you for literally one question to
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          2  the child support question and then you will be

          3  dismissed from this committee.

          4                 MS. FUCHS: Don't you know nobody

          5  dismisses me?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: I had to use a

          7  colorful phrase. Your presence in this committee

          8  will be phased out.

          9                 MS. FUCHS: There you go. I'd rather

         10  be phased out than dismissed.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: All right.

         12                 MS. FUCHS: Yeah, maybe I can be

         13  merged.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: You can be

         15  merged. In the transition -- I want to make sure I

         16  understood what you said earlier about the type of

         17  professionals or in some cases volunteers who

         18  provide the services to the children. Going to the

         19  model where these programs end up under DYCD. You

         20  know, as I look at the basic outline of the plan,

         21  I'm concerned that perhaps, I'll use a little bit of

         22  editorial terms, perhaps a less trained workforce or

         23  workforce with a lesser level of capacity would be

         24  providing services under this new plan. No

         25  disrespect for the people who would be. But,
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          2  obviously I think a lot of the folks are now

          3  providing childcare are very highly trained. I

          4  presume, therefore, in many cases provide a

          5  particularly high quality level of service. But I'm

          6  also concerned what happens to the folks who are

          7  currently providing the service who end up no longer

          8  having the opportunity to do that under this

          9  transition. In effect, will there be any lay offs

         10  under this plan and a subset question which matters

         11  a lot to members of the Council, are people who are

         12  union members no longer going to be doing this work.

         13  In fact, the new folks doing this work will be non-

         14  union. Can you speak to that?

         15                 MS. FUCHS: From what we're

         16  anticipating now, we don't -- we're not anticipating

         17  layoffs, per say. Because we don't do the lay offs.

         18  These are contracted out services. So, what we're

         19  basically going to try and do is develop a model

         20  that matches services with needs much more closely.

         21  So that just to give you an example, because I have

         22  gone now around to several after school programs to

         23  look at a variety of models. We'll all be doing a

         24  lot more of that. But it's pretty clear what you see

         25  is that even when you have certified and trained
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          2  personnel, they're not always being used in the more

          3   -- most efficient way. One way that, I think, we

          4  can ask agencies to redeploy, for example, certified

          5  teachers is to have those certified teachers work

          6  with the college, the college graduates who don't

          7  have the teaching degrees yet. Or even the high

          8  school graduates and train them to do a variety of

          9  things in a different way. In a sense, if the

         10  program is suppose to be linked to the curriculum in

         11  the school, what you're asking them to do is kind of

         12  develop the curriculum -- support for the curriculum

         13  that others can implement when it's not -- when it

         14  doesn't require them.

         15                 I actually from talking to a variety

         16  of people now in engaged in this. I think that there

         17  is in some places this model exists. And it is

         18  really quite extraordinary than what you get from

         19  it. So it's not a model which says, we're basically

         20  going to replace -- we're going to replace, you

         21  know, unionized and certified teachers with

         22  volunteers. It's not that model at all. And I think

         23  one of a good example of this is in the Beacon

         24  schools now where we have 15 percent certified

         25  teachers. And they in the Beacon programs, they are
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          2  in many instances used fairly effectively to oversee

          3  less trained and less well educated personnel.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Let me -- I

          5  don't want to dwell on a debate about the -- what

          6  constitutes the appropriate quality of background

          7  for the work. I understand you're still putting a

          8  lot of pieces together. I would generally say,

          9  you're hear from the Council a belief that the most

         10  highly trained personnel provide the best quality

         11  work. And that's part of what gets our children

         12  going best in terms of educational system

         13  thereafter. But let's put that aside. I understand

         14  when you say this is not a classic layoff scenario.

         15  Because, it's not a City agency formally giving a

         16  pink slip to a worker. But on the other hand, I want

         17  us to talk turkey here. If existing unionized

         18  employees no longer have the position to go to work

         19  at -- even if you don't anticipate -- even if you

         20  don't construct it as a layoff, it can end up being

         21  a layoff. So, do you have any projection to how many

         22  people of current union members would no longer be

         23  working in those facilities as a result of this

         24  restructure?

         25                 MS. FUCHS: I really -- I mean it
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          2  would be irresponsible for me to answer that at this

          3  point. It may be zero. I just couldn't possibly.

          4  There are so many different organizations out there

          5  that do this in so many different ways. That a lot

          6  of this will be local choice on how they choose to

          7  use their resources. But a lot of it will be

          8  providing a variety of models to the local providers

          9  that they may not have had access to before also. I

         10  saw recently a study that the Virtual Y put together

         11  and one of the things that they found which was

         12  quite fascinating is that often you get better

         13  outcomes when you have young energetic people who

         14  have not just worked all day, for example, in these

         15  after school studies who can help the certified

         16  teacher. So, you're often in some settings, one

         17  certified teacher and five energetic college kids,

         18  can do an enormous amount of work that you may not

         19  get in a setting where you have three certified

         20  teachers. Then you can take the three certified

         21  teachers and break them up. You don't have to get

         22  rid of them. And redeploy them in a different way.

         23  But you're then getting a better outcome for a large

         24  number of kids.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: So let me dwell
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          2  on that.

          3                 MS. FUCHS: This is about deploying

          4  scarce resources more efficiently on one level and

          5  providing a variety of opportunities for after

          6  school care to the parents and kids.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: I recognize

          8  that's your message throughout. But let me dwell on

          9  this one point because I think you just gave a good

         10  example.

         11                 Redeployment. Is there a commitment

         12  from the Administration to ensure that union members

         13  who are currently doing this work will end up in one

         14  place or another in the publicly funded efforts

         15  directed at children? Will end up being employed at

         16  one place or another in that network? Whether it's

         17  the public schools or childcare agencies or whatever

         18  it may be.

         19                 MS. FUCHS: I have to repeat it. It

         20  would be irresponsible for me at this point to say I

         21  can guarantee everybody full employment who has a

         22  job right now. I mean --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Is it a policy

         24   --

         25                 MS. FUCHS: The funding is not clear.
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          2  The economy is not clear. And I can't really answer

          3  that in good faith.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: As a matter of

          5  goals, as a matter of policy, is that the goal here?

          6  Is that something that you would factor in as a

          7  significant part of this equation to ensure that all

          8  existing unionized workers end up in some

          9  appropriate type of employment in this transition?

         10                 MS. FUCHS: I guess I would have to

         11  qualify that which is to say that all workers who

         12  are doing a great job, we should try and keep them.

         13  Whether they're unionized, non-unionized, certified,

         14  non-certified, if we come up with the decent

         15  evaluation process and determine that a particular

         16  program has workers who are really performing in an

         17  outstanding way in serving the kids, that should be

         18  our goal. We should really try not only to keep

         19  those workers, but develop their skills and support

         20  them.

         21                 So, that would be how I would

         22  formulate the policy. We want to keep and support

         23  the workers who are doing the job that we would all

         24  want here for the kids in New York.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: I would just
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          2  leave this point by saying I think you understand

          3  how important it is to the Council to ensure that we

          4  do not have layoffs, to ensure that the quality

          5  unionized workforce continues to do its work.

          6  Obviously, we're talking only about people who are

          7  satisfactory in their work.

          8                 MS. FUCHS: Well --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: But I just want

         10  to leave you with that. I want to leave -- we all

         11  agree that we're not -- if someone is not doing

         12  their job, that's one thing. But if someone is doing

         13  their job, it's imperative to us to ensure they

         14  either do that job or something else appropriate in

         15  the public domain.

         16                 A quick final question on child

         17  support just to make sure I'm understanding this

         18  correctly. Dr. Fuchs, you might be able to answer

         19  this or maybe other members of the panel.

         20                 In the transition of the Office of

         21  Child Support Enforcement to HRA, the question that

         22  sort of jumps to my mind is, I presume the people on

         23  public assistance who require enforcement on child

         24  support would find that HRA was a particularly good

         25  home for this function because there would be a
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          2  great deal of sensitivity in their situation. Let's

          3  talk about people who don't happen to be on public

          4  assistance who need that enforcement. How are we

          5  going to ensure that they don't end up sort of

          6  getting a little lost in the equation and I think it

          7  parallels some of the workforce development issues?

          8                 How do we ensure that folks who have

          9  not been the constituency of HRA get an appropriate

         10  kind of service in terms of childcare, excuse me, in

         11  terms of child support enforcement?

         12                 MS. MILLER: (Not identified for the

         13  record.) Hi. Similarly, to other functions they

         14  generally provide to non-public assistance clients,

         15  we do have the ability to serve populations who

         16  don't receive cash assistance. We have all kinds of

         17  programs that serve generally people in New York

         18  City who need service. The office of child support

         19  enforcement when it went to ACS years ago, went as a

         20  quasi self- contained division and in all candor, is

         21  coming back as such. It is a quasi self- contained

         22  division. And we are now in discussion with ACS as

         23  to how best to move some of the administrative

         24  support over that is behind the scenes. But ACS

         25  itself is headed by Deputy Commissioner Mike Franco
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          2  (phonetic) who left HRA. So, we have the proven

          3  ability in the past to do it and I think certainly,

          4  Deputy Commissioner Franco has sustained that

          5  ability over the years and will not lose it by at a

          6  administrative transfer at HRA. Nor will HRA lose

          7  it's ability to serve all New Yorkers who need the

          8  services that we provide.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Okay. Great.

         10  Thank you. I want to thank the whole panel and

         11  particularly you, Dr. Fuchs, for your patience and

         12  for giving us so much helpful information. We look

         13  forward to continuing this dialogue.

         14                 MS. FUCHS: And thank you, for the

         15  opportunity to testify before your committee, but

         16  particularly you. I think you're questions are both

         17  probative, informative, and exhilarating.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: We attempt to

         19  be exhilarating at all times. The next panel, I'm

         20  going to call them up quickly. I know in particular,

         21  Ed Ott of the New York City Central Labor Council

         22  has been waiting patiently. I appreciate his

         23  patience. We'll get him right on now. So we have Ed

         24  Ott of the New York City Central Labor Council and

         25  Randy Peers of the Brooklyn Chamber of Commerce.
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          2  We'd like to welcome our panel. Again, Mr. Ott,

          3  thank you for your patience and we know that you

          4  have a tight schedule. So we're going to start with

          5  you and feel free to leave whenever you have to. We

          6  understand your schedule. Ed Ott.

          7                 MR. OTT: Thank you. I appreciate you

          8  letting me get right to the microphone. I am here

          9  today representing New York City Central Labor

         10  Council and I am reading the testimony of our

         11  President, Brian McLaughlin. I'm going to skip parts

         12  of this and just get right to the meat.

         13                 We strongly oppose the elimination of

         14  DOE as a standing free agency. The only one solely

         15  devoted to workforce development and upgrading in

         16  City government. But if DOE activities are going to

         17  be transferred to another City agency, our view is

         18  that the most logical choice is one that links the

         19  current adult workforce programs and funding for the

         20  City's economic development arm, or, more

         21  specifically, the Department of Small Business

         22  Services.

         23                 The major funding of DOE's adult

         24  programs have been and are currently supported

         25  exclusively by federal funding under the Workforce
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          2  Investment Act. This funding is specifically

          3  allocated to support employment, training and

          4  business services for unemployed and underemployed

          5  New Yorkers and for working people who need to

          6  constantly upgrade their education and skills so New

          7  York City could remain competitive in the global

          8  market.

          9                 As this transfer occurs, it is

         10  important that we keep an eye on the ball. That we

         11  insure that the network of workforce development and

         12  reemployment programs that labor has helped fashion

         13  and support in partnership with government and

         14  business continues to flourish. This is especially

         15  so given the shape of our national and local

         16  economy. The long economic shadow cast by the tragic

         17  events of 9/11 is still very much with us. There is

         18  evidence of this every day as New Yorkers continue

         19  to pour into the workforce and reemployment centers

         20  managed by our training and education affiliate, the

         21  Consortium for Worker Education. We saw it first

         22  hand at a recent job fair hosted in one Queens

         23  Assembly District. Over one thousand people showed

         24  up, resumes in hand, and the line extended for

         25  blocks.

                                                            86

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2                 One program developed with federal

          3  WIA funds is based on the One Stop Center concept, a

          4  neighborhood delivery system of career centers where

          5  job seekers can access core employment services and

          6  be referred directly to job training, education and

          7  other services. The City is currently reviewing

          8  proposals to expand that system with an eye towards

          9  awarding contracts by the end of this year. We urge

         10  that this process continues unabated during the

         11  transfer period and that the Department of Small

         12  Business Services makes the expansion of the One

         13  Stop System a priority item on its agenda for

         14  growth. I also ask that members of the Council

         15  continue to monitor this important program to insure

         16  it remains on track.

         17                 Placing the adult workforce

         18  employment and training programs within DBS provides

         19  labor, government and business with yet another

         20  opportunity to work closely together and growing

         21  businesses and growing jobs. For almost two decades

         22  now, labor- assisted training and education programs

         23  have been a large part of the solution in upgrading

         24  the City workforce and developing reemployment

         25  programs that lead to meaningful work and economic
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          2  growth. Its successes have often gone unnoticed.

          3                 I would like to read a brief passage

          4  from a report recently undertaken by the independent

          5  Center for an Urban Future about workforce training

          6  programs in New York City.

          7                  "While non- profits funded with

          8  money struggle to achieve even moderate success in

          9  job training, unions and labor management

         10  partnerships are running a parallel system that

         11  trains and upgrades over 200,000 people a year; more

         12  than the much more visible publicly run systems.

         13  Union based training is focused on real jobs. Is

         14  geared directly to the employers and is solidly

         15  successful in helping people prepare for a better

         16  career."

         17                 Labor is proud of the productive

         18  partnerships it has built with business and

         19  government. And we are committed to making this new

         20  emerging partnership with the City work effectively.

         21  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Mr. Ott,

         23  because of your schedule, I just want to ask you one

         24  question. Usually we do the whole panel first. Let

         25  me just do this so we get this out of the way. I
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          2  appreciate a lot of what I heard in Dr. Fuchs's

          3  testimony. But there were a couple of areas I

          4  thought she was being purposely broad and I

          5  understand that's necessary sometimes. But I want to

          6  see how you feel about this. One, up front she said

          7  any savings that might be achieved in the transfer

          8  to Business Services and to Youth Development would

          9  be kept in workforce development programs. So,

         10  instead of the traditional sort of at this moment

         11  normally savings would go back to the general

         12  treasury. She seemed to say that they would be kept

         13  there. But when pressed for some details, obviously

         14  was not able to outline exactly how that would work.

         15  I think of more concern we talked about ensuring

         16  that all budgeted money for workforce development

         17  actually go to the program side. Because as you know

         18  from our hearings on the history of the use of WIA

         19  dollars by New York City, particularly the previous

         20  Administration. A lot of money did not go to direct

         21  service. There I felt her response was broadly

         22  positive, but again, she talked about following the

         23  WIA guidelines which we have found to been very,

         24  very loose and not necessarily a firm commitment to

         25  ensure everything went directly to the customer. So,
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          2  I just want to see if you have concerns in that area

          3  and any ideas or suggestions on that front.

          4                 MR. OTT: Let me say this first,

          5  alright. We know, Ester Fuchs, a long time. Our

          6  exchanges with her and our dealings with her have

          7  always been honorable. She said it, we assumed she

          8  meant it. And we take her at her word. That being

          9  said, we have concerns. That's why we've asked the

         10  Council to continue to monitor the process. We

         11  consider this whole thing a work in progress that we

         12  would rather have not had to engage. So, we will

         13  also be watching.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: We made clear

         15  to Dr. Fuchs we would like to have a higher level of

         16  input and dialogue than perhaps has been truant in

         17  some of the other transitions that the

         18  Administration has undertaken. And we'd like to do

         19  that obviously very closely with you. Unless you

         20  have any other comments, we turn to Mr. Peers. Thank

         21  you, Mr. Ott.

         22                 MR. OTT: Thank you. I'm going to

         23  leave. No insult on Mr. Peers, but I'm running an

         24  hour beyond.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: That's right.
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          2  Not bad for your life. Mr. Peers.

          3                 MR. PEERS: Good morning. My name is

          4  Randolph Peers and I'm the Executive Director for

          5  Workforce Development at the Brooklyn Chamber of

          6  Commerce. I'm here to testify in support of the

          7  Mayor's proposal to transfer the functions of the

          8  Department of Employment to the Department of Small

          9  Business Services. I want to thank the committee for

         10  having me here today.

         11                 Founded in 1918, the Brooklyn Chamber

         12  of Commerce is a business assistance organization

         13  dedicated to helping Brooklyn businesses grow and

         14  prosper, while seeking to foster overall economic

         15  development throughout the City. With more than

         16  1,200 members from all parts of the borough, the

         17  Brooklyn Chamber is the largest Chamber of Commerce

         18  in New York, and one of the fastest growing business

         19  associations in the region.

         20                 As part of its overall economic

         21  development efforts, the Brooklyn Chamber of

         22  Commerce has set up a workforce development

         23  department whose mission is to promote the growth of

         24  the Brooklyn economy by providing programs and

         25  services that increase the ability of businesses to
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          2  access and retain a qualified workforce.

          3  Additionally, the department seeks to enhance and

          4  improve the workforce development system by working

          5  in partnership with government, educational

          6  institutions and community based organizations

          7  responsible for providing employment and training

          8  programs.

          9                 From our perspective, the proposal to

         10  merge DOE functions into the Department of Small

         11  Business Services represents a positive step for New

         12  York City's workforce development system and a

         13  victory for the business community. Putting positive

         14  budgetary outcomes aside and I guess we have to do

         15  that now after Ms. Fuchs's testimony, we believe

         16  there are four compelling justifications for making

         17  this change.

         18                 1. Workforce development should be

         19  used to support and enhance economic development.

         20                 2. The overwhelming majority of  job

         21  growth in New York City and the nation occurs

         22  amongst small and mid- size businesses.

         23                 3. The Workforce Investment Act

         24  requires a business driven approach to workforce

         25  development.
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          2                 4. Business groups, local development

          3  corporations and Chambers of Commerce need to become

          4  active partners in the system.

          5                 The current system in New York City

          6  considers workforce development its own discipline

          7  and it's created an infrastructure dedicated to

          8  preserving that philosophy. In reality, workforce

          9  development needs to be a component of effective

         10  economic development. Without job creation through

         11  the start up or attraction of new businesses and the

         12  expansion of existing businesses, there's really no

         13  need for workforce development. In order to

         14  facilitate the integration of workforce development

         15  into an overall economic developmental policy,

         16  workforce development funds should reside with an

         17  agency whose mission is to support the interests of

         18  the business community.

         19                 As the recent economy clearly

         20  demonstrates, even during difficult times, job

         21  growth occurs in small and mid- size companies.

         22  Brooklyn, which is home to nearly 500,000 jobs, is a

         23  good example of a small business economy that is key

         24  to fueling new job creation and ultimately an

         25  economic recovery. The small businesses -- these
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          2  small businesses are more likely to benefit from

          3  effective workforce development policies that could

          4  assist with workforce training, human resources

          5  support, and the effective marketing of incentives

          6  designed to promote job creation and business

          7  expansion. In this sense, the coordination of

          8  workforce resources with the small business services

          9  programs is essential. Currently, New York City

         10  operates a supply side workforce development system

         11  focusing on the needs of the unemployed and relying

         12  on social service agencies to provide such services.

         13  While this is an important element to the equation,

         14  the system needs to do a better job of responding to

         15  the demand side or the labor needs of business.

         16                 A recent comprehensive study of the

         17  Brooklyn business community put out by the Chamber

         18  indicated that only eight percent of companies ever

         19  use the public workforce system to find workers.

         20  This is unfortunate given the amount of resources

         21  spent on workforce development. In order to change

         22  this, New York City needs to move away from their

         23  historic over reliance on social service agencies

         24  for the provision of services. Local development

         25  corporations, Chambers of Commerce, and trade
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          2  associations need to be active partners in the

          3  provision of such services designed to focus on what

          4  employers need. The Department of Small Business

          5  Services, through its many partnerships with these

          6  groups, is in a better position to tap into their

          7  expertise.

          8                 Finally, there is a need to bring

          9  more business leaders into the policy debate around

         10  workforce issues in New York City. Especially small

         11  business leaders. Once again, the Department of

         12  Small Business is clearly in the best position to

         13  make that happen. Given all these justifications, we

         14  have reason to be optimistic that the proposed

         15  changes -- optimistic about the proposed changes.

         16  But as the City moves to effectuate this transition,

         17  we do want to raise two concerns that we hope will

         18  be quickly addressed.

         19                 First, it is our belief that the New

         20  York City Workforce Investment Board, of which

         21  Kenneth Adams, the current Chamber President is a

         22  member of, was on track under Commissioner Wu and

         23  DOE. New business members were added, functional

         24  committees were formed and relevant policy issues

         25  were openly discussed. We hope that under any new

                                                            95

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  system these constructive changes -- the

          3  constructive changes in both form and function of

          4  the WIB will continue.

          5                 Our second concern relates to the One

          6  Stop System in New York City. Currently, Brooklyn is

          7  the only large borough without a functioning One

          8  Stop. Given that it took the City over four years to

          9  open up the Bronx and Harlem One Stops, we are

         10  greatly concerned that Brooklyn's 2 1/2 million

         11  people will continue to have to wait for services.

         12  Although, we understand that any transition might

         13  ultimately create some disruptions in services, we

         14  hope the Department of Small Business Services

         15  recognizes the need to move more quickly on a

         16  Brooklyn One Stop.

         17                 In conclusion, we applaud the Mayor

         18  on his recommendations to consolidate DOE into

         19  Department of Small Business Services, and we see

         20  this as a positive step toward the true integration

         21  of workforce and economic development. I want to

         22  thank the committee and I also want to say I look

         23  forward to working with the Council as well as the

         24  Mayor on these issues.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: I want to thank
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          2  you, Mr. Peers. I especially want to thank you as a

          3  Brooklynite for your point about the presence of the

          4  One Stop's in our borough. I was concerned that the

          5   -- again, I respect Dr. Fuchs a lot. But the answer

          6  on the further development of the One Stop is

          7  obviously a little watery right now. Always one

          8  appropriate answer to life is always everything will

          9  be sent to Brooklyn. But since she didn't do that,

         10  we would like to hear at least that -- it's the

         11  single biggest borough that we're going to have

         12  appropriate representation. So, I want to work

         13  closely with you on that. Thank you very much for

         14  your time and your patience. The next panel, Julie

         15  Shapiro of Seedco, David Jason Fischer of Center for

         16  an Urban Future, Bonnie Potter of the New York City

         17  Education and Training Coalition, and -- I'm sorry,

         18  I read wrong. Employment and Training Coalition and

         19  Glenda Self of Project Hire. I'll just emphasize to

         20  the panel, feel free if your written testimony is

         21  brief, that's great. If you want to summarize,

         22  that's great too. Ms. Shapiro, do you want to go

         23  first? Anyone claim your places after that. Go

         24  ahead.

         25                 MS. SHAPIRO: Good afternoon, Mr.
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          2  Chairman. I appreciate the opportunity to testify

          3  here today. My name is Julie Shapiro and I'm a

          4  Program Manager for Workforce Development at Seedco

          5  and the Non- Profit Assistance Corporation (N- PAC).

          6  Seedco is a non- profit intermediary that works to

          7  build the capacity of community- based organizations

          8  so that they can better serve low- income

          9  individuals in their neighborhoods. While our work

         10  in community economic development, workforce

         11  development, and affordable home ownership is

         12  national, we do much of our pilot program

         13  development and innovative model building in New

         14  York City.

         15                 Organizationally, the restructuring

         16  we are looking at today, has seen many variations

         17  with different strengths and weaknesses. We're not

         18  here today to testify on the merits of the

         19  alternatives. But rather to testify in favor of the

         20  option on the table right now. We think there's a

         21  lot of merit in linking adult employment programs

         22  with the Department of Small Business Services. I

         23  would like to tell you why we would be excited to

         24  forge a relationship with DSBS.

         25                 We believe that this move is very
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          2  much in keeping with the spirit of the Workforce

          3  Investment Act. As has been discussed today, the

          4  Workforce Investment Act seeks to give employers a

          5  more active role in workforce development

          6  programming. Therefore, it enables job seekers to

          7  better meet businesses needs. Seedco has always been

          8  committed to integrating economic and workforce

          9  development efforts. In recent years has had a good

         10  deal of success doing so. We are pleased to be here

         11  today to describe some of our initiatives and we

         12  hope that in doing so, we will contribute to your

         13  discussion of the value of merging job seeker and

         14  small business services.

         15                 Since 1998, Seedco's Non- Profit

         16  Assistance Corporation has been operating the

         17  EarnFair Alliance. This is a network of community

         18  based organizations that began as three and grew to

         19  12. All of these organizations provide a common

         20  program of job placement and retention services

         21  under subcontract and in partnership with N- PAC. N-

         22  PAC's role of intermediary is truly unique in New

         23  York City. It is the only comprehensive provider

         24  that combines funding for small and/or less

         25  experience non- profits, fiscal and contract
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          2  management, technical assistance and capacity

          3  building and resources for program enhancements and

          4  post placement supports. Together the EarnFair

          5  Alliance organizations have placed almost 4,000 low-

          6  income individuals with multiple barriers to

          7  employment in New York City jobs. These

          8  organizations have collectively achieved retention

          9  rates that are among the highest of all employment

         10  services providers in the City. And our placements

         11  are at an average wage of $9.00 per hour, which is

         12  75 percent above the minimum wage.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Ms. Shapiro,

         14  I'm just going to interrupt. My apology. Your

         15  testimony is a little longer than we traditionally

         16  do in these settings. Everyone has a right to

         17  advertise. But, we want you to just -- can you

         18  summarize some of this or just read the sections

         19  that are most pertinent?

         20                 MS. SHAPIRO: Sure.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Because we

         22  certainly know what a great organization you have.

         23  But we would like to hear more about your view on

         24  this legislation.

         25                 MS. SHAPIRO: Okay. I think I'm
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          2  getting there. In the early fall of 2001, at the

          3  same time that our workforce development efforts

          4  were hitting full scale, Seedco was mobilizing

          5  resources in response to the terrorist attacks of

          6  September 11, to assist Lower Manhattan small

          7  businesses and their employees. We were able to

          8  respond to September 11, by developing a unique

          9  package of small business and employee supports.

         10  These supports are a combination of grants, low-

         11  interest loans, and wage subsidies coupled with

         12  technical assistance. All designed to boost the

         13  capacity of these businesses to survive. To date,

         14  we've been able to save what we think are 4,000 jobs

         15  and 90 percent of the businesses that we've helped

         16  are still operating.

         17                 Seedco's experience providing

         18  retention supports to low- wage workers enabled us

         19  to offer an effective package of supports to small

         20  businesses in Lower Manhattan. As a result, we've

         21  been simultaneously filling the needs of small

         22  business owners and those of their low- wage

         23  workforce, saving businesses and also saving jobs.

         24  Building on our expertise in combining small

         25  business and job seekers services, we are moving
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          2  beyond worker retention to helping businesses

          3  expand. We have several sector based initiatives

          4  designed to provide training that place people

          5  directly in industries including the IT industry and

          6  many others. And we also have a project underway

          7  with the New York Foundation for the Arts to assist

          8  arts related small businesses with their financing

          9  and training needs.

         10                 You may hear testimony today about

         11  the limitations of linking small businesses -- small

         12  business with adult employment services. The central

         13  criticism is that small businesses are of limited

         14  value to employment services organizations because

         15  those organizations are charged with placing a large

         16  volume of people.

         17                 In addition, small business usually

         18  can't pay high wages, provide benefits, or offer the

         19  same opportunities for advancement as larger

         20  employers. We know that almost 60 percent of the

         21  nation's uninsured are low-income workers and more

         22  than half of them work at small businesses.

         23                 These are constraints that we must

         24  all work with DBS to address. Yet our research and

         25  experience in combining these services tell us that
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          2  small businesses hold a lot of potential for new

          3  workers. It is because small businesses are a major

          4  engine of the economy creating close to 50 percent

          5  of all new jobs. That supporting their growth is

          6  critical for workforce development. Since small

          7  businesses are and will remain a major source of

          8  low- wage hiring, a key challenge for us is to

          9  figure out how to stabilize them and foster their

         10  growth. At the same time, helping their workers

         11  build assets and move towards self- sufficiency.

         12                 Very briefly, how we're doing this at

         13  Seedco is developing a combination of work supports

         14  called EarnBenefits. And basically these are a

         15  combination of government and non- government

         16  benefits that low- income workers are entitled to.

         17  We're trying to provide these benefits both at

         18  community organizations and small businesses where

         19  you'll find low- wage workers. Our strategy is

         20  threefold.

         21                 First, we're marketing these benefits

         22  and educating new workers about their value.

         23  Secondly, Seedco has several projects under way that

         24  facilitate access to benefits for low- wage workers.

         25  This includes a project to help low- wage workers
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          2  apply for benefits on line and facilitated access

          3  projects to the earned income tax credit, childcare

          4  subsidies, and food stamps.

          5                 Third, we're developing new benefit

          6  products such as free checking accounts, individual

          7  development accounts match savings program, a family

          8  loan program, the backup childcare program, and

          9  employer based upgrade training.

         10                 This array of post- employment

         11  services is transforming our community based

         12  EarnFair alliance into local worker support centers.

         13  And with the recent Ford Foundation grant, we are

         14  building on this network to create a small business

         15  employer based benefits package. This package will

         16  include many of the enhancements I've described.

         17  Plus a low- cost health insurance package.

         18                 In conclusion, we hope this testimony

         19  has given the City Council some new perspectives on

         20  how to creatively blend small business and workforce

         21  development services. We believe there is tremendous

         22  possibility in this restructuring of City agencies

         23  and we're looking forward to working with the

         24  Department of Small Business Services in the

         25  upcoming months. Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Thank you, Ms.

          3  Shapiro. Ms. Potter.

          4                 MS. POTTER: May I jump in?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Please jump in.

          6                 MS. POTTER: You said we could claim

          7  our places. I said we could go out and finish this

          8  up over a beer since there are just a couple of us.

          9  I'm Bonnie Potter of New York City Employment and

         10  Training Coalition. I'll try and just summarize. I

         11  think there is some very interesting aspects of this

         12  proposal to transfer DOE over to DSBS. But at the

         13  same time, obviously this was done very quickly. And

         14  none of us had chance to view in detail what this

         15  proposal is actually going to look like. So, I would

         16  like to talk about some of the promises and some of

         17  the challenges. But just to put this in perspective,

         18  my organization represents a 160 organizations and

         19  then train and place over quarter million of New

         20  Yorkers in jobs in the public and private sectors.

         21  We're very  happy that Seedco is one of our members.

         22                 Our members work with people who are

         23  entering the workforce for the first time and those

         24  who have worked many years and find themselves

         25  unemployed for the first time as well as individuals
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          2  in need of better paying jobs or upgraded skills to

          3  maintain those jobs. I would just -- talking about

          4  everybody that we represent and work and employee

          5  and train, I would just like to note in the language

          6  of the local bar. The local law refers to unemployed

          7  and economically disadvantaged. But I think the

          8  mission of the agency is much larger to deal with

          9  incumbent workers, low- wage workers. And you might

         10  want to take another look at that language. We work

         11  with 10,000 employers during the year and we also

         12  provide services through HRA as well at the DYCD.

         13  And did provide services through DOE.

         14                 In terms of this transfer of services

         15  to DSBS, a couple of the, for us promising aspects

         16  that I'd like to highlight. Ester spoke this morning

         17  about the opportunity to connect economic

         18  development to workforce development. And for us as

         19  you may have heard critics of these programs in the

         20  past, there are many out there that consider

         21  workforce development programs those poor -- federal

         22  training programs for poor people. And the truth is

         23  that what workforce development is all about is

         24  training and providing all New York City residents

         25  the education and the workforce development
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          2  resources that they need and the skills to meet the

          3  needs of employers in the City and without that, we

          4  cannot have economic growth and we cannot have

          5  economic development. So, we think that's very

          6  important.

          7                 Having said that, our members on the

          8  micro level have been working for years with their

          9  employers in their local communities because if we

         10  weren't doing that, we couldn't get anybody a job.

         11  So, that has been going on. What this possibility of

         12  putting -- or now probably putting the agency under

         13  the Department of Deputy Mayor for Economic

         14  Development, it gives us a possibility of doing

         15  things on the macro level, not just the micro level.

         16  So, for instance, there are new businesses,

         17  hopefully, that will be coming into the City. There

         18  are employers that will be expanding. We need to

         19  find ways to tie those economic actions to workforce

         20  development. So, if an employer possibly, I know a

         21  number of other cities and my office is looking at

         22  this now, have a number of types of agreements with

         23  companies to hire New York City residents or hire

         24  from training programs when they're expanding a

         25  business or tax incentives or whatever.
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          2                 Also, on the micro level, we know

          3  that the Deputy Mayor for Economic Development has

          4  enormous plans for redevelopment of downtown

          5  Manhattan, redevelopment of your borough downtown,

          6  Brooklyn. The Mayor's talked about building 300

          7  units -- 300,000 units of housing. The Deputy Mayor

          8  is talking about preparing for the Olympics. So,

          9  these suggest the possibility of thousands of new

         10  jobs. And we need to understand that we may not have

         11  the workforce prepared to do those jobs. We look

         12  forward to working with the Deputy Mayor to look at

         13  what will be the needs of New York City employers as

         14  they expand and look at doing all this new

         15  development. And how we can ensure that the people

         16  we work with everyday will have the skills and

         17  education to do those jobs.

         18                 I think, lastly, we should all note

         19  that on a long term basis, economists are projecting

         20  changes in the makeup of our workforce. So that even

         21  though now there's high unemployment. At some point,

         22  there's going to be a skill gap. There's going to be

         23  at our age range less workers coming into the

         24  workforce. Less educated workers. And that's going

         25  to create skill gaps. Just in terms of doing some
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          2  long range thinking about all these issues, we think

          3  it's very useful to have workforce development

          4  within the agency or within under the purview of the

          5  Deputy Mayor for Economic Development.

          6                 Secondly, Julie spoke about working

          7  with small business. It is difficult for many of our

          8  members because of the pressure of their performance

          9  based contracts and the need to place lots of people

         10  at certain wage levels and do that quickly. We often

         11  go to the larger employers because we can place more

         12  people there. And as Julie pointed out, there are

         13  enormous employment opportunities working with small

         14  business. We have to look creatively at how we can

         15  work with small business and work with the problems

         16  that the City contractors have right now in serving

         17  small business. We look forward to working with the

         18  Department of Small Business to try and figure out

         19  how we can work more creatively in this way.

         20                 I also want to say, we needed to find

         21  who a small business is, I think the definition

         22  labor economist uses, businesses under 500

         23  employees. But I think my members are dealing with

         24  Mom and Pop stores in their communities. And often,

         25  businesses that have less than 50 workers. So, we're

                                                            109

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  not always talking about the same thing here.

          3                 I think, thirdly, resolving the issue

          4  of where to move WI clearly allows us to move

          5  forward in setting up a One- Stop system. Fourth,

          6  resolving the issue of where to move the programs.

          7  It allows the agency to engage as an advocate for

          8  workforce development. As you know the Workforce

          9  Investment Act is being re- authorized right now.

         10  There are many provisions in that law or proposed

         11  law that could either help or hurt New York City.

         12  And it's very important for us to have an advocate

         13  in Washington who's watching out for our interests.

         14  I think on the funding level, also, both in

         15  Washington and New York City -- New York State, I'm

         16  sorry. There are funding opportunities and we need

         17  to make sure that our agency heads are advocating

         18  for us. I would like to point out that my program

         19  was up in Albany for the first time this year

         20  lobbying the state legislature and we found out for

         21  the first time that there used to be $250 million

         22  dollars worth -- ton surplus funds from employment

         23  programs. And as of this year, there were just 50.

         24  And so, how does that happen? Who's minding the

         25  store? Why aren't we up there advocating for that
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          2  money, every penny of it. As you pointed out and as

          3  Ester pointed out, there is going to be less money

          4  this year. Well, there is less money this year. But

          5  let's be creative or trying to bring more of it into

          6  the City.

          7                 I'd like to mention that New York

          8  State does reallocate it's unused Workforce

          9  Investment Act Funds every year. Well, maybe we

         10  should be talking to them about an allocation for

         11  New York City. Because we've certainly been spending

         12  ours.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: I just want to

         14  caution you. It's been very helpful and pertinent to

         15  legislation, but I do want you to wrap up so we --

         16                 MS. POTTER: Wrap up? Because I think

         17  the funding issue is important. There's probably

         18  economic development money out there, CDBG funds

         19  that we could be leveraging. So, since we're talking

         20  about funding, I think that's important. We need to

         21  look at that. The challenge here is the

         22  Administration and you talked about disruption of

         23  services and clearly merging two different agencies

         24  with different structures is going to take time.

         25  There's going administrative problems. But, I think
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          2  it's also useful to look at the potential to maybe

          3  start a fresh and look at doing things new ways and

          4  developing, streamlining, processes. Because that's

          5  been a problem sometimes under other agencies. We

          6  like the idea that we're going to be working with a

          7  business minded agency that may be able to kind of

          8  streamline the services and make them the --

          9  procedures and process and make them more customer

         10  friendly.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Just two quick

         12  comments before Mr. Fischer. First of all, amen on

         13  the point about 10F all the other fundings stream

         14  that we're probably not tapping.

         15                 MS. POTTER: We all need to be up

         16  there, Councilman.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: We all do, I

         18  agree with that. I think -- I appreciate especially

         19  your comment in light of what was sometimes I

         20  thought little lack of agility in the previous

         21  structure with Department of Employment. Where I

         22  think some  opportunities may have been lost. And

         23  also, when we were sending mix signals about our

         24  capacity to implement the funding properly, it

         25  doesn't encourage people to be creative in getting
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          2  us more. But the other thing that I would just

          3  caution all of us on, is because we all sort of

          4  optimist by nature or we wouldn't be doing this god

          5  forsaken work, that we all bought in -- at least a

          6  lot of us bought into the vision that the Department

          7  of Employment was going to be this new and

          8  reinvigorating place under this Administration and

          9  everything should be centralized there. And wasn't

         10  this the solution to all our problems. And here we

         11  are a year and half later trying to convince

         12  ourselves that DBS is going to be the solution to

         13  all our problems. I hope it is. I just want to

         14  caution that the orthodoxy of just a few more short

         15  months ago has quickly been flipped on its head.

         16                 MS. POTTER: Councilman, I think I

         17  talked about promises. They have to be fulfilled.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Right.

         19                 MS. POTTER: This is all promised.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: It's all

         21  promised. Mr. Fischer.

         22                 MR. FISCHER: Thank you, Councilman.

         23  I'm David Fischer. I'm here representing the Center

         24  for an Urban Future. For those of you not familiar

         25  with the Center, we're an independent non- partisan
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          2  think tank located just a few blocks from here on

          3  Wall Street. And our primary research interests are

          4  economic development and workforce development. With

          5  that in mind, you might not be surprised to hear

          6  that we applaud the Bloomberg Administration for

          7  this proposed move of adult workforce funds and

          8  programs to Department of Small Business Services.

          9  But I think the point you just made a moment ago

         10  about where we were 16 months back and where we are

         11  now is probably the single most important thing to

         12  bear in mind. The decision to move this portfolio to

         13  DSBS can't be the end of the story. This committee

         14  knows that merely transferring workforce programs

         15  from one agency to another doesn't solve policy

         16  problems or improve the delivery of services to New

         17  Yorkers who need them.

         18                 I'm here today to talk very briefly

         19  about one immediate concern that we're going to face

         20  with these programs and one more programmatic issue

         21  to think about going forward. First the budget

         22  issue. Over the last five years, our workforce

         23  programs, as you know, have been shifted between

         24  three different agencies and the patterns of

         25  spending in program priorities have really been just
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          2  as unstable. The City's appropriations under the

          3  Workforce Investment Act have shrunk since the law

          4  went into effect three years ago. But our own

          5  spending skyrocketed after program responsibility

          6  passed from the Human Resources Administration to

          7  DOE in early 2002. With the City's economy reeling

          8  after the September 11, attack and the employment

          9  crisis that followed that, there was a sentiment

         10  which I think was an appropriate sentiment to get

         11  the money out the door and into the hands of people

         12  who needed it.

         13                 But now we find ourselves at risk of

         14  running out of money just as we're transferring the

         15  programs to a new agency that is going to have to

         16  learn about this. Just as really the Department of

         17  Employment did in early 2002. DSBS is going to have

         18  to make hard decisions within a short time frame and

         19  I strongly urge, Council, and this committee to

         20  remain vigilant in it's fiduciary oversight role and

         21  push the agency to set out a spending plan in the

         22  shortest feasible amount of time. What Dr. Fuchs

         23  mentioned earlier about making some decisions about

         24  One- Stops and where the program priorities are

         25  going to be in the next month and a half, I would
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          2  say that's kind of the outside as far as an

          3  acceptable timetable goes to figure this out.

          4  There's a real risk that we're going to run out of

          5  money before the calendar year ends.

          6                 Beyond the immediate challenge of the

          7  budget, there are a couple of philosophical issues

          8  we should be thinking about. Anywhere job training

          9  has really been successful, it's been because policy

         10  makers have tailored services to the needs of local

         11  businesses and provided value. Cities like Boston

         12  and Austin, Texas, and the state of Washington have

         13  done a good job with this. As have some communities

         14  in upstate New York -- Rochester for one. So there

         15  is something of a best practices model and as Bonnie

         16  mentioned a moment ago, many of her better vendors

         17  certainly Seedco among them, have really been at

         18  head of the curve on this and started to figure it

         19  out. Now I think there's an institutional structure

         20  in place that will push them to do this to a much

         21  greater extent. And it's very encouraging for me to

         22  hear what my colleagues on the panel have been

         23  saying and what early speakers have said that they

         24  see how this makes sense. And that they're efforts

         25  are going to go in that direction.
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          2                 A critical aspect of working with

          3  business and one that has never been a priority in

          4  New York City, is offering much more training for

          5  currently employed workers. Surveys of employers

          6  consistently show that a majority of them feel that

          7  their current workforce lacks the skills necessary

          8  to do the best job possible. Workforce officials at

          9  Department of Small Business Services can address

         10  this need and provide value for small business

         11  operators in particular with a menu of skill

         12  upgrade, on the job, and customized training

         13  services. This builds business support for programs,

         14  provides an economic development benefit for the

         15  City, and allows workers currently employed to move

         16  up the jobs ladder. It's our hope that at the new

         17  agency, this incumbent worker training will be

         18  integrated into traditional employment offerings.

         19                 Finally, I would urge the Council and

         20  the newly responsible officials at DSBS to keep in

         21  mind that while it's crucial to incorporate

         22  workforce services into the menu offered to small

         23  businesses, it has been the corporations and the

         24  bigger employers that traditionally have offered job

         25  opportunities to low- income job seekers in large
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          2  numbers. As Dr. Fuchs mentioned earlier in response

          3  to a question from the Chairman on this point, the

          4  Department of Employment had done some of this with

          5  successful training collaborations with Marriott and

          6  Washington Mutual Bank among others. DSBS should

          7  have the same access. As DSBS reports to Deputy

          8  Mayor Doctoroff, like EDC and the other economic

          9  development agencies, we hope that workforce

         10  services continue to reach out to the City's biggest

         11  employers.

         12                 Thanks for this opportunity to

         13  testify. I look forward to working with this

         14  committee and the Administration to continue

         15  refining and improving our City's workforce system.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: I want to thank

         17  the panel. We appreciate your testimony very much.

         18  And we have one more panel. Sandy Socolar, Leonard

         19   -- I'm sorry. Did Ms. Self not come up? No, wait.

         20  There was room at the table. Where were you? Hold on

         21  Sandy. We have one from the previous panel. Now

         22  we've got two. We have Ms. Self for this panel and

         23  three folks for the next panel. I want to ask

         24  everyone to try and keep to about three minutes.

         25  Just the interests of everyone's schedule. Please
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          2  summarize testimony if that allows us to keep on the

          3  timeline. Go ahead, Ms. Self.

          4                 MS. SELF: Good afternoon. I'd like to

          5  thank the Councilman for allowing me to speak this

          6  afternoon. I represent Project Hire. Project Hire

          7  provides job training for men and women who are

          8  interested in the building trades and property

          9  maintenance industry. I am very, very uncomfortable

         10  with the decision of the Mayor's office to move

         11  adult training programs to the Department of Small

         12  Business Services. The bouncing of adult training

         13  programs from DOE to HRA back to DOE and now

         14  possibly to the Department of Small Business Service

         15  has been very disruptive to our client populations

         16  seeking employment services and to training vendors.

         17  I would like for the City Council to think about six

         18  questions in making their decisions as to whether or

         19  not this would be an appropriate move.

         20                 Why can't DOE continue as an

         21  independent agency? Why can't the Department of

         22  Small Business Services merge with DOE? How will

         23  merging DOE with DSBS benefit the delivery of

         24  employment and training services to the unemployed

         25  and underemployed? What does DSBS offer those
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          2  seeking employment services? Will DSBS set policy

          3  for workforce development? What happens to the WIB

          4  Board? Will the current funding allocations continue

          5  for special populations, dislocated workers,

          6  employer linked and employer guarantee training?

          7  Will this mean a greater share of the ITA dollars?

          8  Vouchers will go to the employer guarantee training?

          9  Which specifically assist small businesses. These

         10  are very important questions that I think the City

         11  Council needs to consider. Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: You get extra

         13  credit for clarity and pithiness. Thank you, Ms.

         14  Self. Okay. The last panel, Sandy Socolar, Jennifer

         15  March- Joly, and Leonard Fennell. I'm going to -- I

         16  know we have some passionate advocates here,

         17  particularly Ms. Socolar, so again I want to say be

         18  passionate, but very focused in your remarks. Let's

         19  see we can go -- we'll go left to right.

         20                 MS. SOCOLAR: I'm going to speak very

         21  briefly about the proposed school age transfer. I

         22  think we are hearing a very different approach than

         23  we had originally heard and I would like very much

         24  to get a copy of the testimony and so we can respond

         25  to it in some real detail in writing and talking
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          2  with the Council staff. But there are three things

          3  that struck me in the testimony. One of them was Dr.

          4  Fuchs constant reference to after school programs.

          5  The focus is on expanding and having the best

          6  quality we can for after school programs. She posed

          7  this against the "daycare model" as if it was

          8  something less than desirable, you know weak. The

          9  thing that concerns me is that when you asked, will

         10  this provide the same hours and days of care, Dr.

         11  Fuchs had to stop and consult with her staff as to

         12  whether that was the intention. I want to reiterate

         13  what we've said before that there is a difference

         14  between school age childcare and after school

         15  programs.

         16                 This money which this Administration

         17  and this City Council inherited from Mayor Giuliani

         18  and previous Council Members is dedicated childcare

         19  funds. There's an artifact here that they have

         20  extricated that amount of City funds that was being

         21  spent. But it was all part of childcare funds. And

         22  the funds for these daycare centers was a whole

         23  combination of block grant funds and City funds. The

         24  thing, I think, that we need to insist on is your

         25  point that there be no disruption of services to
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          2  individuals. Which means that they need those that

          3  are getting it are parents who have gone through an

          4  eligibility needs requirement that they needed

          5  childcare in order to make a living and support

          6  their families. That requirement that we have an

          7  equal quantity of accessible childcare for that many

          8  children is something that I think you have

          9  introduced into this discussion that hasn't been

         10  said, for instance, last Monday's hearing about

         11  maintaining quality and quantity.

         12                 One other thing about school age

         13  childcare where the verbiage, oh this is a

         14  consolidation of services. In fact, it is a

         15  fragmentation of services. We got building funds to

         16  build a whole bunch of daycare centers all around

         17  the City in the early '70's. And the point was that

         18  it was innovating the opportunity for parents to

         19  have their preschool children and their school age

         20  children in the program and to have one place to

         21  pick their children up at the end of the day. What

         22  this is doing is dividing the contracts for those

         23  programs into two fragmenting the care for the

         24  parents into two different programs and locations. I

         25  think for us to point out to them that this is
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          2  really fragmenting the school age childcare services

          3  rather than any kind of consolidation.

          4                 On the eligibility thing, our

          5  childcare reform network committee which I happen to

          6  chair has been working with your committee and with

          7  DeBrenzo's (phonetic) committee now for many years

          8  about the terrible problems that parents on public

          9  assistance have with the eligibility process as HRA

         10  is handling it. It has a terrible track record of

         11  moving parent-- when parents move from being on

         12  welfare and working and then moving just totally

         13  self- supporting jobs that a whole lot of them lose

         14  their childcare. Have months and months of being on

         15  unable to get the funding to pay their providers. At

         16  this point for Dr. Fuchs to say that the key concern

         17  we have is continuity of care and continuity of

         18  eligibility by giving all the responsibilities to

         19  HRA, I think is going to be a first class disaster

         20  for some 63,000 children that are now cared for. Who

         21  now get their eligibility determined by ACD. When

         22  ACD was at HRA, we had a perfectly seamless process

         23  of moving from being on welfare and then continuing

         24  to get childcare when you once start working. ACD

         25  moved to ACS. The parents who are -- who were
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          2  working parents continued to have totally seamless

          3  eligibility process as well as those now dwindling

          4  number of families on public assistance who are

          5  moving from PA into a self- supporting job. ACD was

          6  doing that process seamlessly. Then it was turned

          7  over to HRA to take care of those. Now just like

          8  3,000 children that are now in ACD centers, HRA had

          9  responsibility for those parents who were getting

         10  informal care and moving onto self- supporting jobs.

         11  And their track record for some 6,000 children has

         12  been a disaster.

         13                 Right now, New York City needs to

         14  have a functioning eligibility system better than

         15  we've got now. The controller's report showed that

         16  it's totally inadequate as it is. And we're in the

         17  beginning of the massive application campaign for

         18  enrolling children so that our daycare centers and

         19  family daycare programs can get the new children in

         20  September. If we turn this over to HRA at this

         21  point, with neither of the staff's being anywhere

         22  near adequate, we are going to have the most

         23  colossal problem of underenrollment in the Fall.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Thank you very

         25  much. Some very helpful testimony. It's unclear to
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          2  me from Dr. Fuchs testimony if they would attempt

          3  that aggressive of a timeline, I'm hoping and I can

          4  read between the lines properly to say that for the

          5  immediate eligibility process, it would stay where

          6  it is. But I think that's something we should follow

          7  up as a committee to verify. I think throughout this

          8  process we're going to have just to keep a very

          9  clear monitoring presence to encourage that common

         10  sense prevails in something like not changing an

         11  eligibility process in midstream at very least.

         12  Thank you. Jennifer.

         13                 MS. MARCH- JOLY: Good morning or

         14  afternoon. I'm Jennifer March- Joly, the Associate

         15  Executive Director for Program and Policy at

         16  Citizens' Committee for Children. Thanks for the

         17  opportunity to testify. I'm going to limit my

         18  comments today to the shift of childcare eligibility

         19  functions from ACS to HRA. And I'm going to

         20  abbreviate my testimony as I go along. If I fail in

         21  that task, just interrupt me. I'm going to focus

         22  specifically on what we think the final plan should

         23  address.

         24                 First, the plan has to ensure that

         25  access to childcare enrollment during the transition
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          2  and immediately after operational changes. We know

          3  that request for childcare eligibility determination

          4  fluctuate throughout the year. Staffing should be

          5  maintained at levels adequate to ensure timely

          6  eligibility determination, enable enrollment of

          7  children, and avoid unnecessary underenrollment

          8  levels at programs while the demand for care is

          9  high. Parents must also be informed of changes in

         10  eligibility enrollment and recertification

         11  procedures. And the City should develop a

         12  coordinated public education campaign to include

         13  direct mailing to parents currently utilizing ACS

         14  childcare as well as TANF recipients.

         15                 Childcare providers and CBO's have

         16  links with the communities they serve and should be

         17  engaged in efforts to inform parents of procedural

         18  changes. This City should work with these groups to

         19  develop a plan for conducting outreach and the plan

         20  should include the development of easy to read and

         21  understand materials about eligibility and

         22  enrollment. Entities that provide parent referrals

         23  should be informed of procedural changes. A timeline

         24  for broader outreach to these entities that provide

         25  parent referrals should be developed.
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          2                 Two, we think the plan must address

          3  maintaining and expanding venues and times when

          4  enrollment is conducted. We know that research in

          5  Washington Heights and Brooklyn suggest that parents

          6  look for information related to childcare in

          7  locations such as WIC offices, healthcare

          8  organizations, supermarkets, laundromats, check

          9  cashing offices, et cetera. We think that enrollment

         10  should be tailored to meet the needs of working

         11  parents and information on eligibility and

         12  enrollment changes and enrollment activities should

         13  be located where it's  most easily accessible.

         14                 We also know that successful

         15  enrollment of families in Child Health Plus has been

         16  achieved through facilitated enrollment programs and

         17  there's a lot to learn from this experience. The

         18  eligibility enrollment plan should engage childcare

         19  centers, family childcare networks, and CCR&R's as

         20  facilitated enrollers, thereby expanding access to

         21  subsidized childcare. Eligibility and enrollment

         22  activities should be expanded to include locations

         23  that can also serve the community and weekend and

         24  evening hours.

         25                 Furthermore, in January 2002, the
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          2  face- to- face interview requirements of Child

          3  Health Plus and Medicaid were eliminated. And new

          4  state regulations provide for automatic eligibility

          5  for welfare to work families. The City should

          6  consider developing a mail in renewal process for

          7  childcare eligibility and provide automatic

          8  eligibility for families transitioning from welfare

          9  to work.

         10                 Third, we think the plan should

         11  detail the process for eligibility and parent

         12  notification consistent with codes and regulations

         13  and delineate clear roles for ACS and HRA. The plan

         14  must outline specific roles for both agency in

         15  childcare eligibility determination and enrollment.

         16  And consideration should be given to the

         17  relationship between these responsibilities and

         18  parent access to care.

         19                 Currently, recertification of

         20  childcare eligibility takes place in ACS Resource

         21  Areas and through interviews conducted at centers.

         22  We think the plan should ensure that this continues

         23  to take place where parents, you know, seek care.

         24  They should be able to go through the

         25  recertification process.
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          2                 Further, we know that the number of

          3  children on waiting lists varies by community and is

          4  related to the availability of spaces. Eligibility

          5  staff must be made familiar with waiting list

          6  priority status in order to properly manage the

          7  waiting list which now stands at 36,000 children.

          8                 Fourth -- I'm almost done -- the plan

          9  must provide detail on how eligibility determination

         10  will be made consistent with applicable federal code

         11  and regulation. The statutory requirements in the

         12  federal register stipulate that low- income working

         13  parents receiving childcare development funds for

         14  subsidized care must have the full range of care and

         15  providers from which to choose. We also know that

         16  individuals accessing care through HRA rely

         17  disproportionately on unlicensed care, and that the

         18  opposite is true for people accessing childcare

         19  through ACS. So that we would urge you to ensure

         20  that the plan has enrollment staff that are prepared

         21  to provide families with information on the full

         22  range of childcare options.

         23                 Finally, the plan has to address how

         24  it will amend the New York City Consolidated

         25  Services/Child Care Plan and we would encourage the
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          2  Council to develop new reporting requirements that

          3  could be publicly reviewed on a quarterly basis and

          4  begin with baseline data on monthly enrollment and

          5  eligibility figures now, prior to the transfer and

          6  after the transfer, the number of fair hearings

          7  requested, information solicited from parents

          8  regarding where they obtain information on

          9  enrollment, achieve costs savings, and also we have

         10  to address eligibility enrollment issues related to

         11  school age child care. Thank you.

         12                 MR. FENNELL: Yes, good afternoon. And

         13  thank you for hearing from me today. My name is

         14  Leonard Fennell and I'm the President of the

         15  Professional Association of Day Care Directors of

         16  New York City and also the Director of the Helen

         17  Owen Corey Child Development Center serving 170

         18  children through the borough of Brooklyn.

         19                 The transfer of the functions from

         20  ACS to Department Social Services (HRA) and the

         21  Department of Youth and Community Development (DYCD)

         22  has us very concerned and most of the concern was

         23  expressed today. But specifically regarding the

         24  transfer of function to HRA, we're concerned that

         25  eligibility is being transferred from ACS, an agency
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          2  who has finally gotten it right, even with the

          3  budget cuts, to an agency that has no vested

          4  interest in childcare. What is their motivation to

          5  maintain the numbers and the workers? What mechanism

          6  would be in place to ensure that in a fight for

          7  dollars in the future, childcare eligibility side of

          8  the agency would not be protected from another

          9  severe hit as they had last year under ACS?

         10                 After decades of working to building

         11  a strong Early Childhood program in New York,

         12  despite many prior cutbacks, we see a further

         13  dismantling of public early care and education. In

         14  regards to the transfer of function to DYCD: Will

         15  the after school model that DYCD used to show how

         16  they plan on serving children and families be

         17  presented in order for us to see its true validity?

         18  They mentioned a model that they use in order to

         19  come up with their numbers. Is that the same model?

         20  Is it equivalent to or better than or less than or

         21  more quality than what the children are receiving

         22  now? Will services that may be appropriate for

         23  youngsters basically nine years old and older be

         24  appropriate for children who are still considered

         25  early childhood? How will they meet the needs of the
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          2  younger children? What would the transfer do to

          3  parental choice and needs when that choice of the

          4  ACS centers is taken away?

          5                 ACS is in the begin -- excuse me, ACS

          6  is in the business of providing care for young

          7  children, kindergarten through 3rd graders and they

          8  are professional and their role as early childhood

          9  people fits with the K through 3rd graders who are

         10  in the Department of Education still considered

         11  early childhood. What will the agency -- will the

         12  agency show and they can provide the appropriate

         13  service for these younger children with the 25

         14  percent cut in money? With DYCD taking over the

         15  Department of Employment in July, would a further

         16  transfer of other services to them be a bit

         17  overwhelming?

         18                 We understand the need to save money,

         19  but are seriously concerned that it is not done

         20  without serious thought. We look to our City Council

         21  representatives to obtain the answers to the many

         22  questions before making these transfers. Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: I want to thank

         24  the panel. I appreciate your testimony. I want to

         25  thank everyone who's been here today. And I think we
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          2  shed some light on the issue. We will continue to

          3  work closely together on this. Thank you.

          4                 (Written testimony was read into the

          5  record)

          6  WRITTEN TESTIMONY OF:

             LINDA ANGELLO

          7  COMMISSION OF LABOR

          8

          9                 Thank you for your invitation to

         10  testify before the Committee on General Welfare

         11  regarding the transfer of functions of the City

         12  Department of Employment.

         13                 The New York State Department of

         14  Labor is the state agency charged with oversight of

         15  the federal Workforce Investment Act (WIA) in the

         16  State of New York. WIA, signed into law in 1998,

         17  actually represented many years of active dialog in

         18  both houses of Congress on how best to balance the

         19  employment and training needs of individuals with

         20  the employment and training needs of the private

         21  sector. The enacted legislation placed a very strong

         22  emphasis on linking workforce development activities

         23  to economic development activities. Provisions

         24  within the law, for instance, limit training to only

         25  those occupations which are in demand in the local
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          2  labor market; encourage program delivery design

          3  models that allow for post- employment service, in

          4  addition to pre- employment service with

          5  individuals; and require that the federally funded

          6  employment and training programs (also know as the

          7  mandatory partner programs) better align their

          8  business services to respond to actual business need

          9  in their local economy.

         10                 The Council is reviewing a proposal

         11  that will align the funds provided under Title 1 of

         12  the Workforce Investment Act with an economic

         13  development entity, the Small Business Services

         14  Agency. This alignment appears both in keeping with

         15  the spirit and the letter of the law and offers New

         16  York City's business community the opportunity to

         17  help shape the actual delivery of services in a

         18  manner consistent with their employment needs. A

         19  shift of WIA program responsibility to this newly

         20  created department sends a strong signal that New

         21  York City's employment and training programs must be

         22  aligned with business need and must be aligned to

         23  where job growth and opportunity are expected.

         24                 I look forward to working with the

         25  staff of this new agency, should this proposal be
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          2  passed. Thank you for the opportunity to participate

          3  in this discussion.

          4                 This meeting of General Welfare

          5  Committee is adjourned.

          6                 (Meeting adjourned at 1:12 p.m.)
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